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SENATOR FLOREZ:  . . . get started.  It’s just a little bit after ten o’clock.  Again, we’d like to bring the Senate Select Committee on Air Quality in the Central Valley to order.  We are here again in the same place we were last week when we heard testimony regarding Operation Clean Air and ways that that particular organization is working to clean our air through voluntary measures.  


Again, I’d like to thank everyone for coming today.  This is the seventh of fourteen hearings that we’ve held.  We’ll continue to focus on federal compliance; continue to focus on the role of agriculture.  We are going to continue to follow the Crippen fire outcomes, if you will, to make sure that these types of things don’t continue to happen.  And, of course, we’ve had hearings on dairy quality, just a couple of weeks ago, in Shafter.  We have another dairy hearing planned on the issue of emissions and PM10 and other types of issues scheduled for Modesto a few months from now.


Today’s topic, obviously, is “Respiratory Illnesses and Central Valley Air Pollution.”  Most of you have heard the statistics:  16.4 percent of Fresno County children have asthma—suffer from asthma.  That’s about twice the state average and about three times the national average.  The attention of the committee today is to find out more about the asthma problem; how to identify and find a connection between poor air quality and health; what’s the causes, in essence, of the growing cases of asthma and respiratory illnesses; and, of course, what can be done to improve the situation.  


To answer all of these questions, today we’ve gathered respiratory therapists, the children and families who suffer from asthma, school officials, nurses and doctors, and researchers who’ve studied the topic.  It’s imperative, obviously, as you know, that we do everything we can to allow our residents to breathe easier.


With that, we’d like to start the hearing.  And I would like to say that—and thank—many of you have participated in almost all of the hearings, in fact.  The reason that’s important, as you know, is we are building a record.  We have these on tape.  Transcripts are available two and three weeks after these hearings, and we expect to produce not just legislation but a full report to the Legislature on January fourth or fifth of next year, in which we will take all of these transcripts, find recommendations that we have not implemented that were brought out in these hearings, and then introduce more legislation in the next year.  The goal of it is to make sure that we don’t miss anything.  So, if there’s something in legislation we have not captured, believe me, we will find it in these transcripts and then start to move forward on a second package of legislation starting the next legislative session.  I just want to make sure everyone’s real clear on the purpose of the transcripts.  Also, the purpose of the transcripts is to hold people accountable to what they say.  You know, you hold me accountable, I hold you accountable, and the goal is to go back, look at these transcripts, and basically see if we are actually doing what we said we were going to do.


With that, let’s go ahead and start and get an overview of public health and air quality.  Kevin Hamilton—thank you, again, for joining us—the founder and respiratory therapist, Medical Alliance for Healthy Air.


MR. KEVIN HAMILTON:  Thank you, Senator Florez, and I appreciate the opportunity to appear before this hearing, and series of hearings, today.  Once again, I want to thank you, from the standpoint of public health and asthma in the valley, for taking an interest in this issue and prosecuting it with so much vigor.  It’s a pleasure to see somebody from the Legislature finally taking the time to make this an issue and give the issue the attention it deserves.  Thank you very much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got it.


MR. HAMILTON:  In discussing the public health impacts of air pollution on our communities, I, of course, have to direct the discussion toward asthma and cardiovascular disease; specifically asthma.  


The role that the Medical Advocates for Healthy Air, which I’m a founding member of and several of our other members are here—Roger Larson and Dr. David Pepper, and folks from the Fresno-Madera Medical Society are now climbing on board with this, and we’re very pleased to have all of these people aligning in the medical community on this issue—has been that this is a public health crisis of huge dimension that is significantly impacting our ability to rise to the occasion, so to speak.  We feel that we are responsible for the care of the public health at the front line.  We are providing that public health care.  This is huge for us in the measures of impact, and let me just give you a few numbers that I ran this morning, just to show you how this has become an escalating problem for us in the face of diminishing resource.


In 1992, in our program offices, we were seeing about 350 patients in January and February of the wintertime.  I took the opportunity to measure those numbers.  In 1996, the number had climbed to 540; ’97 it was about 500 again.  By 2000, however, we hit 600 patients.  By 2002, we were at 623, and this last year, in January and February—in two months—we saw 777 patients.  Now, this is just for asthma alone.  This doesn’t reflect all the other diseases.  And this is just my program alone.  Basically, we’re talking about six people seeing this volume of patients.  This is a huge—huge—impact, and it shows the escalation of this problem.


I think what’s been most difficult about this is identifying cause and effect:  where does the air pollution go up, and where does that then affect the public health?  The Kaiser people have done a very nice job in looking at Northern California Kaiser patients versus Central California Kaiser patients.  Their conclusion is that Central California Kaiser patients have almost three times the utilization for asthma, respiratory, and cardiovascular disease; specifically, respiratory and asthma when pollution levels of various types rise; specifically, fine particulate and coarse particulate matter.  When they rise, utilization goes up.  Wherein, in Northern California, we don’t see these same things.


What this shows is the chronic underlying illness going on.  Our patients, our people, are affected by this chronically, long term, more than folks who are normally affected acutely by this and don’t have such an underlying chronic health problem.  We believe, from what we’re seeing here locally, that it’s because of chronic exposure to these pollutants, even though the levels of some of them are staying fairly steady—at, of course, two or three times the safe healthy rates—that this is creating chronic underlying lung conditions that make them more susceptible to these spikes.  The spike occurs—three to five days later we have these huge bursts in patient numbers.  And now we’re able to document that more clearly.  We’ll, hopefully, have some more information here in the next couple of months that will really nail that down even more tightly.


Another big issue:  asthma symptoms in children in Fresno County at 1 in 6 children.  This is an incredible number.  Now, this number shouldn’t be confused with prevalence or the number of kids who are diagnosed with asthma.  These are kids that are having symptoms in the last year for their asthma.  There may be a larger number of kids who are diagnosed.  We haven’t been able to examine that closely from Department of Health Services.  The number, obviously, exceeds that.  You can have a diagnosis of asthma and not have any symptoms in the last year.  So, it’s not counting those kids.  It’s only counting the ones who were sick with it; so, you know automatically that there were more than 1 in 6.


Another point, case in fact:  What’s happening to the school systems?  And that will be talked on much more eloquently by Elaine Beyer and her crew later.  Just briefly, in our look at eighteen years—and we did an eighteen-year examination of this—300 percent increase in asthma, adjusted for the population increase in the schools.  So, once we’ve made that adjustment, three times the rate that the school district population is growing, the rate of asthma is increasing three times more than that in the school district.  Huge burden; number two reason, behind lice, for kids not coming to school.  This is huge.  And lice isn’t a chronic issue.  This is an acute problem.  Asthma’s going to keep coming back and coming back.  It’s number one in the chronic disease problems, so this is huge.


We examined this again in the communities—small rural communities—of Parlier and Selma, and we found almost identical numbers with a similarly severe problem.  Now, in children who are migrant, or from migrant families, and in those schools there, we find a turnover in the elementary schools of 60 percent.  Sixty percent of the kids that start school there don’t finish the sixth grade there because of the nature of the business their families are in.  So, they’re even more at risk.  Not only are they missing school because of the chronic movement for fiscal necessity, they’re also bearing the burden of this illness.


Let’s talk about those migrant families for a brief moment here.  Many of them are undocumented or, because they’re migrant, do not qualify for the various social programs, social medicine programs like MediCal, that would give us a safety net for health care for those folks.  That doesn’t exist.  So, where do they show up?  They show up in our emergency rooms, and the emergency rooms bear the burden; emergency rooms which, by the way, are underpaid for those visits presently by MediCal at a rate of almost 200 percent less than the cost of providing the service.  I’d be glad, if you’d like more documentation on that, to provide that.  


This creates another hideous problem with the emergency rooms.  Programs like mine are taking these patients in.  We still see everybody regardless of their ability to pay.  As of this fiscal year, that burden is becoming so heavy, we’re not sure how we’re going to be able to go on with it next year.  It is exceeding our ability to provide this service, just to pay our people.  We need to be able to write checks and pay people’s salaries, and that is starting to become impaired because of the burden this is levying on us.  It is just that incredible for us.


So, here you have a burden that is affecting the school systems, it’s affecting the public health systems, it’s affecting the quality of life of all the people who live in the valley because anything that affects the other two is going to affect them, and, the bottom line, it affects the economic health of our area significantly, in the same fashion.


Thank you very much.  I appreciate this opportunity.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I do have some questions.  Thank you.


MR. HAMILTON:  Absolutely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me get to the heart of them.  I think what we’re going to do after this, after we have some folks who are affected by it and we get to the schools’ perspective and the hospital perspective, I do have specific questions for the committee that we need for the record, but I do have a couple for you, Kevin, if I could ask them.


MR. HAMILTON:  Absolutely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  “Spare the Air” days.  We talk a lot about “Spare the Air” days, and I’d like to get your perspective on that.


MR. HAMILTON:  My personal perspective?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. HAMILTON:  I think that it’s a nice try but not enough.  “Spare the Air” levels are set at one-fifty on the AQI.  We know that AQIs in excess of 100 have a negative health impact in (quote/unquote) “at-risk” populations, which are everybody 14 and under, everybody 65 and over, everybody with a chronic underlying health condition, which makes up 51 percent of Fresno County, and, as you heard me in Shafter the other day, 44 percent in Kern County, and 48 percent in Tulare County.  So, it’s a great idea, and I understand that the Air Board had to make concessions in order to make this happen with large businesses.  Unfortunately, I think it distracts from the real issue, which is air quality numbers of greater than a hundred are not acceptable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, given that it’s set at—one-fifty?


MR. HAMILTON:  Yes.  That triggers it.  It was one-seventy.  They dropped it to one-fifty last year.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you’re saying it really is not acceptable if it’s over a hundred.


MR. HAMILTON:  To myself as a healthcare provider, that’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why don’t we make it a hundred then?


MR. HAMILTON:  Again, that would probably be a question better asked, and answered, to the Air Board officials themselves.  I know they’ve worked very hard on that program, and I don’t want to take anything away from them for their efforts in that regard.  They would better be able to discuss the political necessity that drove that decision and business necessity.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think that, given that there’s a political reality, and a political reality, it sounds, of lowering that standard, in terms of. . . . it sounds like we’re negotiating our kids’ lungs with industry.


MR. HAMILTON:  Thank you.  I like the way you put that.  I think you get the idea.  That’s the way I’ve felt through this whole thing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that we’re negotiating those “Spare the Air” days . . .


MR. HAMILTON:  Not just our kids, keep in mind.  Excuse me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Respiratory patients.


MR. HAMILTON:  Adults too.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  I gotcha.  I’m just going to ask you, because this is the forum to ask it—we’re a Select Committee—should the State Legislature, then, have a role in that?  I understand that the Air Board makes those decisions.  When we say the “Air Board,” I assume we’re talking about the California Air Board, right?


MR. HAMILTON:  Actually, it was the local San Joaquin Air Pollution Control District.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re pushing some bills through, and I’m wondering whether or not, you know, just like the issue of water meters or not:  Will they ever do water meters locally and make a decision, or does the state have to step in and say, “Look, since you don’t want to make this very unpopular decision locally, we will”?  My question to you, your opinion only, should the Legislature work diligently, since we have legislation on this Air Board, to bring that standard lower?  And if we do bring it lower, what happens, from your point of view, if we made it not one-fifty but one hundred?  I mean, what happens, from your perspective as a health official?  What does that do?  What kind of positive does that bring or not?


MR. HAMILTON:  I understand.  The answer to the first part of your question is:  yes.  The answer to the second part would be:  yes, with the qualifier that if that legislation’s going to come forward, it would also have to carry with it some of the other types of attachments that have occurred in other types of labor-focused, benefit legislation that would look at the total number of employees any organization might have that this might impact.  Obviously, smaller numbers of employees in a smaller business, this could cripple them, and we wouldn’t want to see that happen.  You know, you guys would have to set those kind of levels and be very careful about how you approach that.  


I’m not in the mood, from my standpoint, to swap anybody’s health for political necessity.  You won’t get me on that side.  But I recognize your world in which you live in, in which you’re going to have to deal with every. . . . yes, I think that you folks need to step up.  You’ve already stepped up personally, but I challenge the whole Legislature to step up with you and rise to this occasion.  The evidence is clear.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I guess the reason I would say that is, obviously, as we move legislation forward, the reason our legislation is moving through the Legislature is we’re about to move into an extreme excessive air designation for ozone; one of the few in the country.  And I’m wondering if those type of designations don’t mandate drastic measures, particularly on this particular standard.  The reason I’m asking is I just want to get your perspective that if we were to do that—this is just if we were—what kind of positive health effects do you think might fall from that particular action?


MR. HAMILTON:  Again, if you were. . . . and we’re talking about to step in and lower the AQI threshold for “Spare the Air” to be implemented and, then, to mandate participation in that by employers of a certain size.  I just want to qualify what we’re talking about here.  I think that you cannot undervalue public awareness and the role it plays in public health.  Most of our battles in public health have only been won by public awareness campaigns.  The smoking campaigns, the seatbelt campaigns, the lead campaigns; I mean, you can’t talk to somebody who doesn’t know that lead in paint is not a good thing.  Even smokers agree that smoking is probably bad; they’re just choosing to do it.  So, that’s where the role is for something like this.  Once you get that going, then we’re going to see people’s awareness increase, and as they begin to practice behaviors that limit their exposure, even though we can’t fix the pollution problem, we all agree for the next five to ten years, even if we’re on board and we jump hard now and do everything we’re supposed to do today, then we can affect how ill they become because of it.  And we’re not getting the information.  We’re trying hard, but it’s not getting out there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you know if we ag burn on “Spare the Air” days?


MR. HAMILTON:  No.  “Spare the Air” day is a no-burn day for everything.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  For everything.


MR. HAMILTON:  Right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But the threshold is high.


MR. HAMILTON:  A hundred and fifty on the AQI, like I say.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that’s the industry negotiation.


MR. HAMILTON:  That’s what I was given to understand.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just one other question, just from a layman’s point of view.  When we watch the television and all our weathermen come on and they say air quality is set at a certain standard, what’s that based on?


MR. HAMILTON:  They’re based on a projection for the next day.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s your thoughts on that?


MR. HAMILTON: 
Well, we have the technology now, at least—and again, the Air Board can speak more clearly to this than I can, or folks from CARB—but my understanding, again, is that we have the technology now for real-time data, real-time information, and we’re sampling data at a higher rate than we ever have been.  There’s something like forty stations spread across the valley.  That process needs to be more accessible to the public.  


It’s not from lack of will on the part of the Air Board.  Whenever we’ve approached them with a group of people to be notified, they’ve been very quick to step up to the plate there.  I think we need a more proactive approach, possibly again guided by the Legislature or some similar entity—commission, a central agency, something.  I’ve advocated for a long time, as I did with Operation Clean Air, and I’m sorry I missed your hearing, but the setup of a central point that acts as a center for excellence, advice, and resource for everybody on this issue would be a huge boon to the valley, and it doesn’t exist right now.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MR. HAMILTON:  You’re welcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’d like to hear from some families’ perspectives, and I’d like to hear from Caleb Schneider.  And you’re from Hanford.  Is that correct?


MR. CALEB SCHNEIDER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can I ask you some questions?  Maybe we can do it that way?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Sure.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How long have you. . . . you have asthma.


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, I have asthma, for eight years.  I was diagnosed when I was 8 years old.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How often do you suffer from asthma attacks?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  We like to call them “episodes,” but once a month, usually, I have trouble, real trouble, breathing.  Usually at a swim practice or soccer or something like that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many times have you been to the Emergency Room?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  I, myself, have never been in the Emergency Room.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you describe for us what happens when you have an episode?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Well, what happens biologically, there’s tissue inside of your lungs, there’s airways, air passages, and those constrict, and then they fill full of mucous, dramatically narrowing your airway.  What happens emotionally, it scares you.  It scares you half to death.  You’re really scared.  Everyone around you gets scared.  Everyone runs away; they don’t know what’s really going on.  Usually, it takes someone else who knows what’s happening to get you some help.  It’s really a frightening thing to happen.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many medications do you take for your asthma?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Currently, I take two:  Albuterol for sudden attacks, and right now I’m taking Advair twice a day.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And do you have to keep those with you at all times?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  I have to keep my rescue inhaler, the Albuterol, all the time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All the time.  So, that means anywhere you’re at.


MR. SCHNEIDER:  It’s in my backpack.  It’s in my car.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you pay attention—we were just talking about the news reports—do you pay attention to the air quality reports on the news?  Do your parents pay attention to it?  Is it something that you feel is readily accessible to people like yourself, particularly younger folks with respiratory asthma problems?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Me, as an individual, yes, because I watch the news every morning.  It’s something I do check on:  the pollen count, the mold count, the air quality.  I know that I’ll have to limit my activities, but more so, I have to let the other kids know that they need to limit their activities.  Every Monday night in the first part of the year, we have practice for band, and I have to remind my band teacher that we have to take more breaks because there are kids who are having problems breathing.  A lot of them have to stop.  You see four or five kids using their inhalers, a lot of kids having to drink a lot more water.  I know it, but a lot of other kids my age don’t.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you know when it’s a bad air day.


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you know it by not necessarily the television but just what you’re . . .


MR. SCHNEIDER:  You can tell when you wake up in the morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have a school nurse at your particular school?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  No, we don’t.  The closest thing we have is a school resource officer.  He’s a police officer, and he just simply knows advanced first aid basically.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does he know how to handle your asthma episodes?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  I don’t think he has too much experience with it.  I really don’t know.  First thing he’d probably do is call 9-1-1.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do your teachers, from your perspective, know how to deal with asthma?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  No.  None of them, really, at all.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, what happens when you have an asthma episode at school?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Recently, we had a kid who had an episode at school, and he fell to the ground.  He wasn’t having an asthma attack, but he was having respiratory trouble.  Everyone backed away.  Me and a couple of other people tried to get him to slow down his breathing.  It took us at least seven or eight minutes to try and get an adult there.  I mean, we kept calling the office, and we couldn’t get through to get someone there.  We finally had to walk down there to tell the principal, “Someone’s having an asthma attack,” just to get someone out there.  It was probably twenty minutes before we even got an ambulance to show up. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What ended up happening?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  He went to the hospital, and he was released to his mother the next morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But everyone was pretty much aware that that was an asthma episode?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, everyone was pretty sure because that’s what I told them, like “He’s having trouble.  You can’t just let him sit there on the ground.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you were the resident respiratory person there.


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You participate. . . . you mentioned sports and activities?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many days have you missed because of your asthma, you said, since eight years old?  I mean, how much school do you miss?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  I’ve never missed school, usually.  I mean, I’ve made it to school every day my entire life.  I’ve had worse days having the flu, and I still go to school, but I’ve seen a lot of kids who it’s like, “Where’s Brian today?”  “Oh, he went to the hospital last night.  He’s on a ventilator, and he’s in a coma.”  I’m the one who gets to hear those stories; pretty much the historian of asthmatic episodes at our schools.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.   Just one last question.  You have an opportunity as a very young valley resident to tell a legislator, or any of the legislators, what should we be doing?  What else should we be doing in this fight against air or asthma issues?  What would you tell us that we need to work on that we’re not working on?


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Helping the kids now.  There’s a lot of kids who are uneducated.  I volunteer at a week-long camp every year through the American Lung Association.  Often, they come in, younger kids have no clue what’s going on.  We get some older kids who really don’t know what’s going on.  They kind of went through a school program, Open Airways, and it really didn’t get through to them, you know, because a lot of times you’re taken out of class to do these things, and then you have to go back and make up your class work.  Well, I don’t want to do twice as much work in the same amount of time, so a lot of kids just don’t go.  We need to educate kids, make sure they know how to take their medications, know the early warning signs, and, in the long run, we really need to have a lot less “Spare the Air” days, especially when it’s 150, I hear, AQI.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MR. SCHNEIDER:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Appreciate it.  Thank you for coming today.


Let’s have Sophia Hinojoza.  I saw Sophia walking in earlier.  Is that your son?


MS. SOPHIA HINOJOZA:  This is Larry.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.  Come on up.


MS. HINOJOZA:  He’ll be going to the hospital after this because he’s had trouble the last four days.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me just thank you again for testifying.  I know you testified in Sacramento as well, and I appreciate that.


MS. HINOJOZA:  Thank you for having me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, let me just, number one, thank you again.  How many children do you have?


MS. HINOJOZA:  I have three.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many of them are asthmatic?


MS. HINOJOZA:  My oldest daughter, she’s sixteen, and she was diagnosed with asthma just in February—the day before you heard me.  She had an asthma attack.  They had to call 9-1-1.  We’re a few miles from the Crippen fire when all that was happening.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  During the Crippen fire.


MS. HINOJOZA:  Her asthma is under control.  However, though, she plays softball—she’s a catcher—and in between innings, she’s having to pump herself up.  But hers is under control.  


He’s a severe asthmatic.  As I said, he’s going to be going to the hospital after this because the last four days have been really tough for him.  I meant to bring all his medications.  He’s got seven medications that he’s taking right now every day.  Every day he takes these, and he’ll tell you his favorite one is his Singulair.  He’s on a machine.  He has to have medication at school every day, and the last two days, he’s had to go in twice because he just can’t control it.  It’s not even been a bad air day, and already he’s having a hard time.  Last year he missed 38 days of schools.  This year he’s missed 58.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Fifty-eight days?


MS. HINOJOZA:  Fifty-eight days of school, because when he gets an asthma. . . . he’s a severe asthmatic.  He doesn’t miss a day or two; he misses like a week or two.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of bad air days, you know, I’ve been asking folks about the issue, when you hear it’s a bad air day.  What does it mean to you when you hear today is going to be a bad air day?  What goes through your mind as a mother in preparing your children for that kind of a day when you hear about it?


MS. HINOJOZA:  I just kind of shake my head because that means he can’t go out and play.  And if it’s an extremely bad air day, his doctor will call me at home and tell me, “He is not going to school today.”  She’s done that to me twice last year.  It just means he can’t go outside and play.  There he is stuck in an office with nothing to do because he can’t bring video games or anything like that.  Because of his epilepsy, it’s really not good for him to play video games also, so.  But it’s hard.  It’s really hard because he has to stay home.  I have to find a way to entertain him at home.  I’ve got to make sure that the air is not even too cold.  Cold air, drinking a cold cup of water, can set him off coughing because it’s the cold.  It’s just really hard.  It’s hard for him.  I feel really bad for him.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the medication, you said you wish you would have brought them, but I’m just wondering, in terms of folks knowing out there the cost of these medications, what is that running?  If you don’t mind sharing that with the committee.


MS. HINOJOZA:  He has to take Flovent, Serevent, Albuterol.  Those are ten bucks a piece because of my husband’s insurance.  He has to take. . . . I forget the name of the other one, but it’s for his allergies.  I can’t remember the name, but it’s twenty bucks a bottle, and we go through a bottle a week.  So, that’s really expensive.  His machine we have to rent, and that’s nine bucks a month.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s all covered by insurance, though.  Is that correct?  Most of that?


MS. HINOJOZA:  Most of it.  The Singulair—the Singulair’s pretty expensive.  That’s about twenty bucks a bottle too.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you mentioned, how many days?  I think it was 58 days, and then the year before 38 days.  How many days work do you miss?


MS. HINOJOZA:  Every single day he’s out.  I’ve exhausted my sick leave.  They’re docking my pay now.  At least every month they take money from my check.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, when he has an episode, then you’re . . .


MS. HINOJOZA:  I’m out.  In fact, when you asked me yesterday to come, I at first said no because I said, “I’m sorry, I would love to, but I’ve exhausted my sick leave, and I just can’t afford it.”  My principal spoke to me, and he said, “I want you to go.  We will not dock you.  You need to go.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, thank her as well.


MS. HINOJOZA:  Him.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of your doctor, you mentioned that the doctor calls on bad air days.  Is that normal?


MS. HINOJOZA:  No.  He’s just the most severe case that she has.  I appreciate her so much because she takes such good care of him.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, your doctor calls you and tells you there’s bad air days.  How about when Larry does go to school?  Is there a school nurse?


MS. HINOJOZA:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are they as informed?  Do they keep you in the loop?


MS. HINOJOZA:  Oh, yes.  His school nurse is Kate Brown—she’ll speak a little later—she’s excellent.  She’s excellent.  I have gone through the Internet and gotten printed stuff and had the teacher post it:  this is what you do.  So, he has a daily checklist.  And, like I said, the last four days he hasn’t been able to go out.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  At the last hearing in Sacramento, you mentioned something that I’ve been hearing quite a bit since we’ve been having these hearings, and that is trying to figure a way to move out of the valley completely because of the air quality situation.  Is that still running through your mind?  When you talk to other people, what are they saying?  This is important because, as I’ve talked to legislators, too much sometimes we don’t really hear what’s going on out there.


MS. HINOJOZA:  That’s what all the doctors say for a quality life for him, for me—because I have asthma also that I was diagnosed just last year—and my daughter:  we need to get out.  It’s not about I don’t want to leave my family.  It’s not about that.  I’d leave in an instant.  This is my son’s life, my daughter’s life, my life.  I’d leave today if I had the money and call my mother every day, but I just simply can’t afford it.  I can’t work $9,000 in collections with medical bills; just him—just him—because I won’t go to the doctor because I can’t afford it.  Him:  $9,000.  Just him.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the issue of what we should be doing, what’s your thoughts?  There’ve been lots of news media, lots of reports in television and newspapers about this big push of elected officials at the city level, the state level, the fed level; you know, everybody’s talking about what they’re going to do.  What do you make of that as a person who’s just watching all of this and is affected by that?  Does that seem real, not real?  What?


MS. HINOJOZA:  If everybody would follow it, that would be great.  That would be great.  But you know, there are no burn days I see driving and I see these cars smoking up the freeway, smoking up the streets, and I’m thinking, what the heck is going on here?  I see fireplaces burning.  These people with ag permits that can burn but on no-burn days are not suppose to burn are burning illegally.  I see all this going on, and I’m like:  this is why my boy can’t go out and play.  He can’t go out and play because these people don’t follow rules; so, maybe handing out citations.  And I know everybody’s busy—I know—and this is maybe second to other things that pose more of a threat, but you know, I’m not really interested in everybody else.  I’m interested in my son.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Let me just ask Larry—Larry?—what do you think we should do?  What do you think we should be doing to clean the air?


LARRY HINOJOZA:  I think we should plant more trees.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  All right.  And not chop them down and burn them, right?


LARRY:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What else do you think we should be doing?


LARRY:  I think we should be littering.


MS. HINOJOZA:  Should not be littering.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Are you hoping that when you grow up—are you going to live here?  Or do you feel like you’re going to move from here?


LARRY:  I feel like I’m going to live here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re going to live here?  Good.  So, you have a stake in this, huh?


LARRY:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, both.  I appreciate it very much.  Thank you for putting that on the record.


Can we have Susan Bedi?


Susan, thank you for joining us.  You have an asthmatic child as well in Fresno.


MS. SUSAN BEDI:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How old is your son, and when was he diagnosed with it?


MS. BEDI:  Ryan is twelve years old, and he was diagnosed at three.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what’s been your experience with Ryan’s medications?  We’ve just talked about that.  How often do they change?


MS. BEDI:  Ryan, probably, three times a year will have to change the regimen of medications because he builds up an immunity, and it’s no longer effective.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And does he participate in sports?


MS. BEDI:  Yes, he does.  He participates in soccer and, last year, football and soccer.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Both.  And how does asthma affect his participation?


MS. BEDI:  Greatly.  Last year in football, he had several bouts that prevented him from playing.  And he had a coach that was, unfortunately, not educated about asthma, and Ryan ended up on a nebulizer and pretty close to going to Emergency.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Again, the same question:  What does it mean to you when you hear about a bad air day?  What does that mean to Ryan?  What does that mean to you?


MS. BEDI:  I think I’m becoming desensitized to a bad air day because what’s new?  It seems to me it’s every day.  For Ryan, his asthma affects him every single day.  It may not be to the point of rescue, but it is affecting him every day.  He comes home tired, exhausted.  It’s because of all the medication.  It’s because he’s having a hard time breathing.  He’s working harder than the average person.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of school attendance, what’s that been like?


MS. BEDI:  This year he missed six days.  He just was out two days last week.  Often, that means a doctor visit with an additional antibiotic.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of your doctor, you have a good relationship?


MS. BEDI:  I have an excellent relationship.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And they’re very aware of the air days or the problem?


MS. BEDI:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of insurance, you have insurance?


MS. BEDI:  I have excellent insurance.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the other question—obviously, we’ve been hearing people talking about leaving the valley—your thoughts on it?


MS. BEDI:  Born and raised in Fresno.  It’s very difficult to relocate, and that was a consideration when he was younger and struggling because we weren’t at the point of getting the medications to the balance that he needed.  Ryan wants to leave.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  He wants to leave.


MS. BEDI:  He wants to leave.  He is also pursuing. . . . his career goal is to be a pharmacist and to develop medications to help.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh, great.  That’s wonderful.


Do you frequently travel to areas that do not have our type of air?


MS. BEDI:  Well, that thought crossed my mind today.  When he was five, he went to India, a Third World country.  I was panicked, thinking oh my gosh, I have to pack the nebulizer, I have to pack all the rescue medications, the steroids.  He had quite a pack when he went.  And it’s interesting, he went to a Third World country—he never had a problem with asthma.  He never had to use any of his medications while he was there for one month.  But as soon as he came back here, he was back on the same.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MS. BEDI:  You’re welcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Appreciate it.


Let’s move on to the schools’ perspective, and Elaine Beyer, Health Services, Fresno Unified School District.


Elaine, thanks for joining us.


MS. ELAINE BEYER:  Thank you for inviting me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you explain to the committee what you do at the school district?


MS. BEYER:  I’m director of Health Services for Fresno Unified, which means I supervise the 81 nurses and 30-some-odd health assistants.  I also develop programs, do a lot of collaboration interagency, and also intra, within Fresno Unified itself.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You heard Kevin Hamilton talk about respiratory problems being second behind head lice.  Is that pretty accurate?


MS. BEYER:  That’s absolutely correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that asthma seems to be a pretty common illness, particularly in this region, and it isn’t always diagnosed before kids go to school—I do know that we routinely screen kids, because I have a couple, for vision, hearing, and other types of diseases—do we do it for asthma?


MS. BEYER:  No, we don’t, because currently, we don’t have a screening tool, and that, hopefully, will be resolved in the very near future.  I know Dr. Pepper and Kevin Hamilton have been working on standardizing a screening tool for this area; and so, we’re hoping that soon that will be something available to our school nurses.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And do you think that will be a valuable tool?


MS. BEYER:  Oh, you bet.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, that’s something the Legislature probably believes in too.  I’m just kind of wondering how we would implement that.


MS. BEYER:  But then, once we identify the problem, the issue is access to care and not only access to care but access to medication and the follow-up and keeping the—[clears throat] I have asthma too; I’m sorry—keeping the parents in compliance.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the outreach, as you mentioned, or the identification of this, to compare it with some of my colleagues in Los Angeles Unified School District, how do we compare in terms of those types of screening for asthma, respiratory . . .


MS. BEYER:  What I’ve just become aware of is that L.A. County has what is called a Breath Mobile.  I have a nurse practitioner who just recently heard of this.  We are planning to make a journey to L.A., where their air is cleaner than ours, to explore the possibility of recreating that model.  What they found is that in one year, along with other collaborative efforts, their attendance has improved by 35%.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re very interested in that as well, and I’m glad to hear you say that.


MS. BEYER:  And then, we have to take into consideration the cost of replicating such a model and finding funding sources to do so.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think that parents are informed in terms of respiratory illnesses enough?  Obviously, parents know that kids have asthma know it, but I mean in terms of folks that may have symptoms—I think Kevin Hamilton talked about the symptomatic issues—they’re still out there waiting to reach a doctor.


MS. BEYER:  I agree with Kevin.  I believe that parents don’t always recognize it as asthma.  They may say, oh, he has another cold, he has bronchitis.  And so, I believe that much more can be done to help parents recognize when their child is asthmatic.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How does the school district work with the Air Pollution Control District?  In terms of notification.  Bad air days.


MS. BEYER:  Part of the problem is that we don’t receive the information from the Air Board until three o’clock in the afternoon, and that’s too late.  So, the only thing we can do is to surmise the next day that the air quality is going to remain very, very similar.


We did work with a group, including the Air Board, to try to set up some standards to change the 150 to something lower, and that was not possible.  So, what we decided to do is to have the school nurses educate the staff on certain months that children should be playing outside before eleven o’clock, and during the summers months, they should be indoors.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Has the school district worked to change those types of schedules in terms of bad air days?


MS. BEYER:  Of course not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In terms of the issue of bad air days and the school district’s communications, teachers—are they aware what to do on bad air days?


MS. BEYER:  Yes, they are.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the parents, the illnesses, the prevention of respiratory. . . . we mentioned there’s an educational process that needs to take place.  Are the schools the place for that to happen, or is there another way to do that?


MS. BEYER:  I think it should be a multidisciplinary approach, from TV commercials to health departments, to physicians’ offices, to schools, and, of course, I’ve left out some very obvious people, just speaking off the cuff.  But it needs to be a multidisciplinary approach.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you heard me talk about the AQI earlier and the lowering.


MS. BEYER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What are your thoughts on that?


MS. BEYER:  I think that’s an excellent idea.  And not only lowering it on paper but enforcing it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We may want to talk to you a little more on the. . . . not in the hearing setting but in terms of an implementation issue with the air district, in terms of notification of the 3 p.m. data.  So, I’d like to talk to you more about that.


But just in terms of lost cost, absences—we’ve heard Ms. Hinojoza tells us 58 days for her son alone—what’s the cost to our schools and our school districts for those absences?


MS. BEYER:  Unfortunately, we don’t have a way of working on that and trying to account for reasons children are absent currently.  We just collect absenteeism data; nothing specific as to what the complaints are.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you have a 504 program?


MS. BEYER:  Yes, we do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you explain that to the committee what that is?


MS. BEYER:  Certainly.  Five-oh-four is part of the 1973 Rehab Act that says that we   have. . . . mandates that we must make allowances for, and in our case, students who are medically compromised, and this is not to be confused with IDEA and an IEP, which is Special Education, because with that, there’s funds that come along with Special Education.  With 504 there’s no funding.  And so, what it would be for an asthmatic student is that the nurse, of course, would be involved, and they would sit down and write a 504 plan that would meet the student’s needs during an exacerbation of asthma.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Last question:  In terms of dealing better with the epidemic—I think was the word used, and I think that’s probably a correct word in terms of where we live, of asthma and upper respiratory illnesses—what can a school district do better, from your perspective?


MS. BEYER:  I think that we can take a look at the athletic program and the enforcement of activities, or lack of activities hopefully, on bad air days.  We’re dealing with an institution there, and that will be very, very difficult.  We can also take a look at when we’re mowing lawns, when we’re trimming hedges.  We can also take a look at adding more nurses so we can do more to educate parents; we can do more case management; we can also facilitate children’s receiving adequate medical attention.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MS. BEYER:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s have Kate Brown, registered school nurse.  Kate, thank you for joining the committee.


As you’re walking up, I can’t tell you how valuable all your insights and recommendations are.  I have at least five things to work on now just hearing this, and I think as we get the transcripts and we pore through this, we’ll find a lot more sub-plots, if you will, in your comments, and I do very much appreciate that, because, quite frankly, I think at some point in time, when we get through all of the testimony and all the transcripts and we actually lay out the recommendations, I think they’ll be quite exhaustive, and I think we’ll then try to figure out how to implement those.


Kate, thank you for joining us.


MS. KATE BROWN:  Thank you for asking me to be here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, you work at one specific site, or you’re responsible for more sites?


MS. BROWN:  I have two school sites, so I’m at these sites about two-and-a-half days a week.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the school district, do you think we have enough school nurses?  Not enough?  Your perspective?


MS. BROWN:  We don’t have enough.  Not only for the school sites, but there’s a lot of special situations that we need nurses to monitor.  I’m very happy for the changes I’ve seen over the last five years, since I’ve been a school nurse, but I would love to see one school nurse, at least.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  You know, we carry that legislation every year, and every year it gets stymied—for three straight years.  We’ll keep trying.


MS. BROWN:  I think they need to know that there’s so many medically fragile kids now that are _________ to the regular school setting, that it’s almost imperative.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, the Legislature didn’t even see fit to pass one of our bills that we compromised on last year, to say let’s at least give more training to those administrators who are talking to our students and give them the type of training it would take to recognize some of these, but we still haven’t got that through.  I don’t know what it’s going to take, but I think we’ll continue to work on it.


In terms of the expertise to handle respiratory problems in children—school nurses, yes/no—are we equipped?


MS. BROWN:  Yes, definitely.  And also, as a nurse, you learn very quickly about your community resources.  If you don’t know something, then you call and find out about that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the identification. . . .  let me ask you, are school nurses nervous when you have an asthmatic child, such as Larry that we were just talking about earlier—58 days missed school—coming into the office?  I mean, what goes through your mind when a child like that comes in?


MS. BROWN:  Well, you know, you check them.  Your first and primary job as a nurse is to assess, so I’m assessing immediately.  I’m watching him walk across the room, looking at his color, whether he’s diaphoretic or sweaty, whether he seems to be using, what they call, accessory muscles or accessory areas in his body to help him breathe.  Too, can he talk?  Is he talking to me at all?  Sometimes when they come in, they can’t talk, and that’s grounds for being very concerned, because if they can’t talk, they’re not moving air.  They’re not moving air, they’re about ready to take a nosedive.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does that kind of identification take some sort of certified training or not?


MS. BROWN:  As a nurse, yes.  There are people in the office that help.  You know, we have health aides and what they call site aides, but they’re not medically trained.  And so, where I would be able to identify a child who’s having distress as they walk in, because I know the signs of symptoms, the health aide may not, nor would an administrator, unless they’ve had a child who has asthma.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  From your experience, and we have a lot of in-service days—you know, my son comes home and says, “I don’t have to go to school because it’s an in-service day”—do you ever talk about the air issue, the identification of bad air days, the notification of bad air days, how school nurses and administrators can play a better role in terms of handling what is the number two, it sounds like, reason for absences?  I mean, is there a specific hour, half an hour, fifteen minutes, five minutes, dedicated to that?


MS. BROWN:  I wish there was.  They do have weekly staff meetings, or at least three times a month they have staff meetings.  Sometimes it’s so difficult to get on their agenda.  I do make an effort, but they’re working on their issues with testing and those kinds of things.  It’s not that they wouldn’t like me to come and give them an in-service; sometimes it’s just difficult.  So, I use everything I can put together.  At one school I have access to an e-mail system, the school, so lots of times I give information to teachers through the e-mail, or I give them notes, or I do one-on-one education all the time, constantly.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think it would make a difference if we required half an hour on this during an in-service to really get the information, the identification, and how to monitor and how to somehow do some. . . . even for teachers and others?  Coaches?


MS. BROWN:  Yes.  It would be nice to have it required, although I would hope that it wouldn’t have to be.  And again, it’s just a matter of getting enough time.  Sometimes I can get a few minutes—five, ten minutes sometimes—to talk to them about a health issue.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you aware the Legislature requires some time for what was called “self-esteem”?  Senator Vasconcellos had a bill—Assemblyman at that time—that required a portion of the day.  I’m just wondering, as a tradeoff, do you think maybe some of that might be for some of these real issues, particularly in our area?


MS. BROWN:  Well, not as a tradeoff but in addition to.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In totality, okay.


MS. BROWN:  I think that’s important too.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I gotcha.


In terms of you and your colleagues giving parents some more communication, does more need to take place, or is it reactionary on your part?  Child comes in and you call the parent, or does the parent call you and say, “My child’s coming to school, it is a bad air day, can you watch out for them?”


MS. BROWN:  It’s a little bit of both.  Usually, during the time when we’re having really bad air days, I look at the paper every morning to see what our air quality is going to be like.  If it’s in the unhealthy range, I know some of my little guys, like Larry, are either not going to be in school or, if they are, the teacher needs to be alerted.  I can’t call a bad air day at my school.  Unfortunately, I have to wait for the district to call it that.  But I can call the teachers who do have severe asthmatics and let them know that I would prefer that the children, those children, don’t play outside that day.  They can come in and hang in the office with me, but they shouldn’t be outside.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Maybe some sort of notification process at the school to let those teachers know who. . . . let’s say they were trained in in-service to know what kids are supposed to do on a really bad day or a bad air day, other than you contacting them individually.  I mean, should they just know what to do?


MS. BROWN:  No.  We shouldn’t expect them to just know what to do unless they. . . . you know, again, if they’re parents of an asthmatic, they would.  But their job is to teach.  I can’t assume that they know about asthma.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I getcha, but if a teacher has walked in the morning at 7:30 and they walked into their attendance office and saw that there was a bad air day—somehow it was posted. . . . do we post those at all where teachers congregate?


MS. BROWN:  They usually do morning announcements, and at that time, if the district has called a bad air day, then they . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  They know.


MS. BROWN:  At my one school, they have, instead of a rainy-day schedule on those days, they have a bad-air schedule, which is similar to the rainy-day.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me get that right.  We don’t just have a rainy-day schedule, we have a bad-air-day schedule.


MS. BROWN:  In this particular school.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do other schools do that?


MS. BROWN:  I don’t know.  I know at my other school they don’t, but they have decided to do this.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What is the name of the school that has the . . .


MS. BROWN:  Balderas.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Balderas has the bad-air-day schedule?  What’s the value of that?


MS. BROWN:  It would, hopefully, keep those kids who are kind of on the borderline of being serious from having an asthma attack while they’re outside playing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’d like to talk to you some more about that, if we could, off this committee, because I don’t want to take too much time on it, but that seems to be something that might have some value for other schools.


MS. BROWN:  Yes, I think it is very valuable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just the last couple of questions.  Legislatively. . . . I mean, you’re watching all of the legislation and the efforts again—city, county. . . . well, city, state, and fed.  Your thoughts:  What more we should do legislative-wise?


MS. BROWN:  Well, I was born and raised in the valley, so over the      thirty. . . . no, fifty-two years, I’ve seen a lot of building going on, a lot of changes in the Fresno area.  We cover over a hundred square-miles now.  I would like to see some things like a moratorium or some real cautious city planning.  I’d like to see some legislation or help for those who can’t afford new cars to buy new cars, because constantly, again, I see, especially in this area where I am a school nurse, there are very poor people.  They can’t afford a new car, and they have to drive the cars they have, and sometimes they’re the big polluters.  So, some program to assist those, either to help maintain their cars so it’s not burning oil or to help them buy a new car, I think would be something very valuable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a question—just your opinion.  We had a bill, SB 709, that talks about area-wide sources and produces a fee schedule.  That means if you’re building a humongous truck center, distribution center, if you’re building something very large, that the Air Board may have the ability to, in essence, figure out how many miles. . . . let me use one in my hometown:  ________ and Target in California, built a couple miles from my hometown of Shafter, estimated to bring in 400 trucks per day, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, the ability of that Target center to bring in additional pollution through diesel trucks.  Under our bill, the Air Board will be able to calculate exactly how much per mile they’re actually bringing in and then charge a fee schedule to that particular developer in order to help raise mitigation funds.  


Those mitigation funds are what I’m interested in, and this is my question:  If we were to use those mitigation funds to enhance one thing that would help asthmatic kids, what do you think that should be?


MS. BROWN:  Go toward developing a reliable, good electric car.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Incentives for that or . . . ?


MS. BROWN:  Incentives—big incentives, because people are not going to want to trade that.  But yes, definitely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about for our schools, if we were to do something?  You know, we heard earlier about the breathe-easy mobile concept.  We heard a lot about implementing different types of things:  additional school nurses, additional respiratory type treatments.  I mean, from a medical health point of view—and I’m going to ask our doctors some of that as well—if we have additional funds generated off people who bring in additional pollution and those funds aren’t just going towards mitigating aspects at the Air Board, meaning. . . . I mean, some folks at the Air Board might say, “Well, that’s a great fund to give away free lawnmowers that are electric, not run by gasoline,” etc.  From a health perspective, where would we get more bang for our buck?  Those additional funds are pretty substantial, just to let you know.  Fee schedules, a very aggressive piece of legislation.  Not many air districts have that.


MS. BROWN:  I’d like to see more registered nurses in the school districts to be very specific about doing home visits.  One of the problems about educating parents is oftentimes those who need to be educated don’t come to the meetings.  I would love to see a task force of nurses to be able to go to those parents and spend time with them, teaching them about asthma, teaching them about triggers, what they could do in their specific home to eliminate a child’s triggers, make sure that everybody in the home knows what the difference is between the inhalers and what they’re used for and when to use them, because I’m finding that the mother will say, “Oh, yes, he knows how to use it.”  I don’t let a child. . . . I mean, I watch them for a good month to know whether or not he actually knows how to use it, and still, they try to sneak in two puffs and go.  So, you know, just to make sure that the child and whole family knows how to use the medications correctly.  And that takes time.  It takes not just one visit.  It might take as many as three visits because we can’t think in the medical model where you see one, do one, teach one.  It takes some time for parents to absorb this information, especially the ones who don’t really interact with the school on a regular basis.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MS. BROWN:  You’re welcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We are at 11:05, and just to let you know, we do plan to proceed on here.  I’m asking questions, which actually allow us, the committee, to get as much information as possible, but we are trying to stay on schedule, and everyone’s done a great job is what I’m saying.  So, we want to continue that.  


Let’s go on, move on, to the hospital and physicians’ perspective.  We have Dr. Paula Ardron.  Thank you for joining us, Doctor.  And I understand you have a PowerPoint presentation?


DR. PAULA ARDRON:  Yes, I do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I do have some questions as well after.  Thank you.


Okay, dim those lights and we’ll go.

[PowerPoint Presentation]


DR. ARDRON:  Today I’m going to talk about the health effects of pollution in the San Joaquin Valley as an overview.  I’m going to discuss Type I and Type II pollution and the seasons of pollution.  I think that’s very important to our understanding.  From an allergist’s perspective, we always talk about seasons.  Also, the major forms of pollution in the San Joaquin Valley and how pollution plays a role in triggering asthma, as well as goals for reducing pollution and its effects here in the valley.


First of all, Type I pollution.  It’s actually the classical form of air pollution.  It’s high levels of sulfur dioxide, total suspended particles, and dust fall, and it’s probably the most prevalent form of pollution in the Third World countries.  It’s associated with viral and bacterial inflammation, but it does not have a significant effect on allergies and their related symptoms.


Type II air pollution, on the other hand, includes oxides of nitrogen, ozone—which we’ve heard a lot about—tobacco smoke, fine and ultrafine particulate matter, diesel exhaust particles, and volatile organic compounds.  These particles are small enough to enter the airway, and they result typically in allergic inflammation.


This is the most prevalent form of pollution, and it’s located primarily in highly populated, industrialized urban areas of the western world.


So, let’s talk a little bit about seasons.  Smog does have seasons.  Smog is actually a chemical soot produced by photochemical reactions in the atmosphere.  In the summer, smog is composed of ground-level ozone and particulate matter.  In the winter, smog contains particulate matter and sulfur dioxide.  In early winter, we hit the peak of particulate matte—that’s less than 10 microns—and I’ll talk a little bit more about its impact.  


So, the one that we’ve heard a lot about is ozone.  Concentrations of 0.1 parts per million to 0.5 parts per million is enough to stimulate release of inflammatory mediators in the airway.  Concentrations greater than 0.1 parts per million results in significant destruction of the membranes lining the airway and also results in increased emergency room visits for respiratory diseases.  Now, here in the valley, our ozone concentrations exceed that level.  These changes are the most significant for individuals who are already predisposed to allergic disease. 


Diesel exhaust particles.  These are typically less than 2.5 microns in diameter, and there have been several studies that have demonstrated that pollen allergens readily bind diesel exhaust particles, thus increasing their delivery to the lower airway.  Diesel exhaust particles have also been shown to increase the presence of allergic cells, like eosinophils, in the nasal airway.


Diesel engines emit a hundred times more particles than gasoline engines, and diesel exhaust particles are actually considered primary particles because they can be admitted directly into the air without having to go through any form of transformation in the atmosphere.


Particulate matter.  There are two forms that we really focus on in the medical literature:  those that are less than 10 microns, and that’s a big category.  It includes some fractions of dust and pollens and diesel exhaust fuel and some other things that we’ll talk about.  And then there’s the particulate matter that’s less 2.5 microns that we deal with as well.  So, PM10 correlates with the particulate matter that is the inhalable fraction of pollution; whereas, PM2.5 is the size that is most likely to penetrate the deeper parts of the airways.  These particles are generated from combustion of fuels, especially diesel fuel.


Nitrogen oxides.  Nitrogen oxides are produced by fossil fuel combustion from vehicles, power plants, and other industries.  Recent studies have shown that allergic disorders are related to outside nitrogen dioxide.  And a Japanese survey showed an increased prevalence of cedar pollinosis in areas that had high-traffic exposures.


Now, how does asthma relate to pollution, or what kind of interaction do the two of them have together?  A Seattle study showed that for every 11 micrograms per cubic meter increase of PM10, there is a 1.5 increase in the relative risk of asthma ER visits.  What this means is, in the Bakersfield area, our concentration of PM10 is about 190 micrograms per cubic meter.  A lot of the things that I’ve read want us to aim to get that under 150.  So, you can see that we’re significantly above what’s desired, but by being that high above, we increase the risk of our patient populations ending up in the emergency room because of asthma flares.


High concentrations of ozone have been linked to reduced pulmonary function, increased cough, and chest tightness.


Traffic-related air pollution—and again, that’s related to nitrogen dioxide—has been linked to episodic wheezing.  


Ozone in the valley.  The American Lung Association State of the Air: 2003 report demonstrated that valley ozone levels are among the highest in the nation.  


The Air Resource Board almanac for 2002 stated that we had 114 days above the state standard, 30 days above the national one-hour standard, and 103 days above the national eight-hour standard.


PM10 in the valley.  PM10 emissions area-wide have increased from 1995 to the present, and problematic sources include waste burning, residential fuel combustion, and dust from vehicle travel either on paved roads or on unpaved roads.


What are the goals for the future?  I just put three on this slide—actually, four—and I’m sure that people can think of other ones.  But I think that the biggest thing that we have to face is reducing diesel exhaust particulate matter.  We can do that in different ways.  Some examples are decreasing the diesel exhaust that’s emitted from school buses and stationary diesel engines that are used in agriculture.  We need to reduce particulate matter that’s less than 10 microns, and one suggestion is by decreasing wood burning during the late fall and the early winter.  Reducing nitrogen oxides by controlling urban sprawl and the traffic that goes along with it.  


By doing the things that are listed above will have an impact on ozone because nitrogen oxides are definitely a major component of that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


DR. ARDRON:  You’re welcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just in terms of the breakdown, if you will, from your experience—children, seniors, everyday people—who does this really. . . . bad air days, who do they affect?


DR. ARDRON:  Well, definitely young children and the elderly are affected the worst, but you must understand that asthma is a disease that doesn’t recognize age; and so, it does have a big impact on the population.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of what the Legislature. . . . what you’ve been reading, what you’ve been seeing, what else could the Legislature, the state, the county, and others do?  I mean, you’ve mentioned quite a bit there in terms of goals for the future.  But do you see us moving in that direction?  Is there more we should be doing?  Something we’re not doing?


DR. ARDRON:  Well, I think somebody mentioned earlier that we can put a lot down on paper, but if it’s not actually enforced or worked on, it can make it quite difficult for the population to feel excited about what the Legislature does.  And I think in looking and in reading about what we already have, there are a lot of guidelines that are set down for decreasing air pollution.  But I think one of our big problems is extending deadlines over and over again and not making the progress that we’ve actually set out to do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And by extending deadlines, would you mean that. . . . the Air Board is going to be making the decision to move into a different category, if you will, in terms of air attainment.  Is that prolonging the problem, or is it something we should be working on, this decision they’re going to be making?


DR. ARDRON:  Well, the bottom line is that a deadline is set, and if you exceed that deadline you face fines, and that’s extremely painful.  But if those deadlines are allowed to extend indefinitely, do we actually reach our goal in the end?  I don’t think so.  And I think that’s what has been the problem within the valley:  not really saying or being firm about those deadlines and enforcing them to the end.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you one last question.  We’ve been talking so much here in the valley, particularly at the Air Board level and the reports about PM10.  Are we wasting our time?  Should we be talking about PM2.5?  I mean, what is it we should really be talking about?  Are we going to redo this five years from now in terms of talking about the deeper respiratory issues, as you’ve mentioned, 2.5?  Just your thoughts on it.


DR. ARDRON:  You know, I think that my focus would be on PM10 because it involves so many different components of pollution.  If you think about ozone wiping out all of the protective mechanisms in the lung, like cilia, to get rid of particles, that’s high in the summertime and can cause a big effect.  But we don’t see a lot of asthma in the summer; we see it more fall through the spring.  It’s the particulate matter that comes in, builds inflammation, and rises over that time period that actually causes the most dramatic impact on health care.  So, I think that focusing there is an excellent start, and it would bring down a lot of the major things that contribute to PM2.5.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


DR. ARDRON:  You’re welcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s have Dr. Malik Baz.


Thank you for joining us.  Can you tell us specifically what you do?


DR. MALIK BAZ:  I’m an allergist in the town of Fresno.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how long have you been a specialist here?


DR. BAZ:  Twenty-one years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Obviously, you’ve heard a couple of accounts in terms of asthma, but from a medical perspective, can you tell us what happens during an episode or an attack?


DR. BAZ:  Sure.  May I correct something. . . . not correct but add into it?  One of the patients giving the price or cost of the medication, actually that was not the cost of the medication.  Those are the co-payments.  The actual cost of the medication is 400 to 500 percent more than what she told.  So, I just wanted to clarify that situation.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, in real terms, what does that mean for a medication?


DR. BAZ:  The average inhaler which she was saying is $10, that was a co-payment.  An average inhaler costs about 60 to 70 dollars, not $10.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what’s the life span on that inhaler?


DR. BAZ:  One month maximum.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And it’s how much?


DR. BAZ:  Sixty to seventy dollars.  A lot of patients in the valley do not have insurance.  For them, it’s not $10; it’s $70 or $60.  I just wanted to clarify that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Per month.


DR. BAZ:  Per month, per inhaler.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so, sometimes there may be . . .


DR. BAZ:  So, somebody who’s buying an inhaler, you are spending 300 to 400 dollars, not the 30 or 40 dollars.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And given there’s other medications to take as well, those are all . . .


DR. BAZ:  They’re all co-payments.  In my view, I think she was telling you the co-payments because a month’s supply of Singulair costs about 60 or 70 dollars.  An average inhaler, Flovent, and all those are between 50 and 70 dollars where you buy it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I think that would match Kimberly Williams’s testimony that says that it’s 400 to 500 dollars per month for her.  She’s without insurance.


DR. BAZ:  Yes.  Depending upon the sickness.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the asthma rates, the respiratory illnesses in the Central Valley, why are they higher here?  Your perspective.


DR. BAZ:  I’d really like to qualify my statement before I say anything because all what I’m saying is the experience.  I think all this should be done on the research, and the medical evidence should be done on that because _______________ made in that statement.  


But we are definitely seeing an increase in allergy, asthma, and sinus problems in the valley, and we know that pollution is contributing to all of this problem.  But we need to make sure what kind of pollution, which pollution, and how it’s affecting is.  There’s a lot of emerging data that’s coming in that, yes, it is affecting it, but I think more research needs to be done in this area.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Obviously, there’s been quite a bit of debate regarding our topography:  where we live in the valley as compared to other places in California.  Your thoughts on that?  Obviously, we’ve got to do the studies, but does that contribute?


DR. BAZ:  I definitely think so.  I happen to be a pilot also, and I know when I fly up there, I don’t want to come down.  I wish I can stay up longer, but I can’t do that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the effects, if you will, the damage that air pollution does to our lungs, I don’t think that very many people sometimes get that story or understand it.  What is the damage to lungs of air pollution, severe air pollution, bad air days?


DR. BAZ:  More and more research is showing that air pollution is affecting all of us, but it’s affecting more to the people who have got the respiratory conditions, especially the asthma, emphysema, COPD.  The children are affected more than the adults because their lungs are still in developmental phase, and naturally, they would be affected more than that.  I’ve seen the patients who have never had any asthma or allergy problem suddenly getting the problem; some of them sixty, seventy, eighty, ninety-year olds.  Now, _____________ is coming in, the pollution is penetrating—Dr. Telles is probably coming in after—that the cardiac system is affected.  We know that the pollution is getting a lot into the cells in the immune system.  We still do not know what exactly is causing after that, but it is causing problems.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of this area, you know, we hear the doubling of the rate of the state four times more than the national level.  What kind of strain does that put on the healthcare system and particularly your office?  What does that do just from a practical point of  view, that type of caseload?


DR. BAZ:  Purely from economical __________, my practice has gone up three or four times, but it’s causing a problem for everybody else.  Economically, all the families are suffering.  We see so many adult patients, so many people on Medicare, where the prescription is not paid, and there’s a limit to give them the samples.  You know that if you don’t give them the samples, it’s a choice between eating and getting the medication, and most of them will not take the medications.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just the last question—if you have any comments, I’d like to hear them as well—but in terms of the harmful effects of asthma on children in this valley, do you see us moving in the right direction at this point in time?  Has there been a better movement in the last couple of months or weeks or years?  What’s your overall thought and the trend of what you’re looking at?


DR. BAZ:  Senator, my answer is not going to be very popular, and I’ve not discussed with anybody.  I was just thinking on the way when I came in, because when your office called, I didn’t make any formal presentation.  In my view, I think we have to look on who are the biggest polluter.  I know we are talking about the burn days and the blowers and all those kind of thing.  I think the three sources are the biggest thing:  ourselves—we are number one—diesel trucks, and the ag.  Until those three industries are addressed, I think the problem. . . . we may make a small dent.  If you look on the history of humankind, economic incentive or penalties are the only way that you can modify the behavior very quickly.  And all these three sectors have to be addressed to look into the future.  Even if _________ ultimately to sell that ______________ to the American public, we have to tell them that it’s going to improve our economy.  So, somewhere that has to be addressed.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a question about ag, if I could.  The person before you—and let me see if I can get the quote—Dr. Ardron—one of her slides talked about the aspects of dust.  You mention agriculture, and I kind of get your perspective on dust, its impacts, particularly on our lungs.  Is that something we can regulate?  Is it something we can tell agriculture to keep it within the emission inventory, put a limit on it, or is dust moving around with wind?  It’s a very important question as we start to debate some of these bills.  But you mentioned ag.  The other thing’s ag.  Is it dust and ag, or is it a combination of both?  Your thoughts.


DR. BAZ:  Again, more research is needed in that critical area.  But my view is that if you take a clean dust which has got no chemicals on it, I doubt it’s going to cause that much serious problem.  The problem is our dust is not clean.  When it gets airborne, it gets coated by these little exhaust particles and all the other polluted material.  So, dust becomes a vehicle to take the pollution in our air.  If you control that, the dust may become less problem.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


DR. BAZ:  Thanks, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s have Dr. John Telles.


Thank you for joining us.


DR. JOHN TELLES:  Good morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you tell us what you do?


DR. TELLES:  I’m a cardiologist here in Fresno.  I’ve been practicing for twenty-five years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The link between heart disease and respiratory illnesses, can you explain that?  Is there one?


DR. TELLES:  Well, not specifically.  I mean, respiratory illness, I think what we’re talking about today is pollution.  There’s a direct link between pollution and cardiovascular illness, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How so?  The link.  Can you explain it a little more?


DR. TELLES:  Well, if you look at some of the large studies, population studies, we’ve done in regards to mortality related to pollution, a large portion of that mortality, excess mortality, is actually cardiovascular and not respiratory.  And perhaps most of it is cardiovascular.  This is kind of a little known fact.  I mean, we’re talking about respiratory today, but cardiovascular is a real issue here too.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of studies done specific to the Central Valley, has there been any?


DR. TELLES:  To my knowledge, there hasn’t been any specific cardiovascular study in the valley.  Most of the studies that I’m aware of that are published in journals, like the American Heart Association Journal of Circulation, they’re almost all done in the East Coast in areas where there’s actually less pollution than we have here in the valley.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that Bakersfield, Fresno, and Visalia are in the top five cities of the worst polluted areas in the nation, do you think this might be a good place to have a study?


DR. TELLES:  I think it’d be a great laboratory to do the study in.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How do we get on that?  How do we do that?  Who funds that?  I mean, what can we do to create that laboratory, as you mentioned?


DR. TELLES:  Some funding is probably available locally.  I know the American Heart would have some funding.  The funding of the papers that I’m aware of, most of it has been done by the American Heart Association.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I know we’ve got a lot of big oil companies sponsoring a whole bunch of stuff about clean air, and I know that they’re. . . . talk about the millions of dollars that they’re putting into efforts.  Have you ever been approached by any of those companies in terms of funding the “lab,” as you mentioned?


DR. TELLES:  No, not myself, but I’m not really a researcher that would be appropriate to be approached for that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  It’s something that we’ll follow up on because I’m just wondering, given we are a perfect laboratory, as you said—three out of the top five cities—I mean, it seems to me that would be something that we could really have some more research on would be valuable.


DR. TELLES:  Just to give you an idea of what we’re talking about, one major study has shown in Boston that the risk. . . . or the incidence of mild cardial infarction heart attacks is greatly increased on days when the PM2.5 levels are higher.  In reading that study, the PM2.5 levels are much lower in Boston than we have probably even today, which is almost a clean air day.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I always thought the incidence of heart rates were lower in Boston—I used to live there—because of the lack of Mexican food restaurants.  [Laughter.]


In terms of your thoughts, San Joaquin Valley, you’ve practiced here pretty much. . . . how many years?  Twenty-five plus?


DR. TELLES:  Yes.  I grew up in the valley.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What would you recommend to us, the Legislature, this committee, as we look at the high incidence of respiratory illness and heart disease as it relates to pollution?  What kind of advice would you give us?


DR. TELLES:  I think some of the things you’re already doing as far as the agricultural aspects are good.  My family background is farming.  In talking to my farming friends, most of them are not opposed to some of the things that are being proposed.


SENATOR FLOREZ: Could they come to the Fresno Farm Bureau meeting?  [Laughter.]


DR. TELLES:  They weren’t the ones at the Fresno Farm. . . . I heard about that.  


I think the most important thing to do is to reduce miles driven by vehicles that pollute, and I don’t think that that can be done with a volunteer effort.  I think there has to be incentives that are created by the Legislature.  I talked to one of your legislative assistants the other day about one such idea that I have, and you may be aware that there currently are gasoline-powered vehicles which are almost zero emission vehicles.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


DR. TELLES:  There’s ten of them on that upper level.  You could make some kind of extra registration fee or tax on vehicles that don’t meet that level to help make incentives to buy vehicles that are partial to zero pollution vehicles.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you heard me earlier talk, hopefully, about the fee schedule and the issue of source pollutions and trying to bring in additional dollars for people who build large distribution units.  Of course, industry is opposed to my bills because we build a lot as well, and that creates things.  I’m just kind of wondering, what would you do if the Air Board were to somehow find an excellent way to utilize those monies to the best impact in terms of air quality?  Your thoughts on that?


DR. TELLES:  I don’t know how much money you would have, but I did a little calculation in my own head that you would need 500 to a billion dollars to have some kind of incentive program to buy the right kind of vehicles.  I think it could actually be done budget-neutral by having a disincentive program to not buy the wrong kind of vehicles.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We have a bond issuance that gets near your number—about $600 million—that basically says if you buy one of the vehicles you’re mentioning, the incentive is no vehicle license fee charge at all at the end of the year.  So, the incentive is you buy one, you actually have no charge.  The money that we put in the bond pays back the General Fund, so it makes it revenue-neutral.  I’m just wondering, from a local level, from an air district level, the fact that they have additional dollars, is there anything we can put in here from a health perspective that would be helpful?


DR. TELLES:  That would make a significant impact in the near future.  I think, unfortunately, probably not, to be honest with you.  I think it’s mostly what is going to be done to get us where we need to be ten years from now, some of the things that you’re already thinking about.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Two other questions.  In terms of mortality rates for heart attacks here in the Central Valley as compared to San Francisco, how do we compare?


DR. TELLES:  Well, we are at higher rate of death from coronary disease in the valley than we are in San Francisco, which is kind of curious.  You would think that the high-risk lifestyle in San Francisco would be causing higher death from coronary artery disease, but we’re actually higher than that.  Now, there’s no study to say that air pollution has anything to do with that, but there may be a correlation there that we are unaware of.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And your thoughts on it?  Does air quality have some connection to that?


DR. TELLES:  My anecdotal experience is that we see patients more frequently in the winter months with heart attacks than we do in the summer months, and the PM2.5 is higher in the winters than it is in the summer.  So, I would love to look at it in a more scientific way, but the data is not available.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  [Inaudible] . . . from your experience there may be some connection?


DR. TELLES:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


DR. TELLES:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s move on to our last panel, and here we’re going to be talking about findings:  respiratory illnesses, are they an epidemic or not?  We have Bonnie Holmes-Gen, American Lung Association.


Bonnie, good seeing you.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Good to see you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Out of the beltway ____________ out of Sacramento and all that stuff.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  That’s right.  Took a train down.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’d like you, if you could, to. . . . I have questions for you, but I don’t know if you have a presentation, but I _______ to you.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Well, I was going to talk mainly about our State of the Air report with the American Lung Association.  This is a report that we initiated several years ago—in 2000—to provide a snapshot of our air quality across the nation.  The goal is to provide an easy-to-understand report that can inform the public, and how people understand in very clear terms, what is the quality of the air they are breathing, and the report is based on data and sound science.  It basically assesses the toll that air pollution places on our ability to breathe.  There’s a methodology that we use, that you may want to ask about, to determine these grades, but basically, the findings of the report every year are stunning.  


This year we found that almost one-half—49 percent—of the population across the country is breathing unhealthy air, and 55 percent of all the counties received an “F” grade, and 70 percent of the 10.6 million adults that have asthma—70 percent of the adults that have asthma—are living in areas with unhealthy air, and almost 70 percent of the children with asthma are living in areas with an “F” grade.  So, there are very significant and troubling ozone air pollution problems.  Our report has only focused on ozone air pollution to this date because we are trying to use three years of quality-assured data, and we haven’t yet had three years of consistent quality-assured data from across the country on particulate matter.  Next year, however, we will be able to, for the first time, incorporate particulate matter in our national report, and we will have a grade for ozone and a grade for particulate matter for every county in the nation.  So, we’re very much looking forward to that.


In California, for the fourth year in a row, since our reports began, California has the top-four most ozone-polluted metropolitan areas in the country.  Of course, the valley has three of those areas on that list.  Fresno, Bakersfield, and the Visalia-Tulare-Porterville area are on that top-four list of the most ozone-polluted metropolitan areas in the country.  Merced is actually number seventh on that list.  And in terms of the most ozone-polluted counties, which is another way we’ve ranked them, California has the five most ozone-polluted counties in the country, and Fresno, Kern, and Tulare are numbers 2, 3, and 4.


Now, let me just say that overall, the levels of ozone pollution across the country dropped a little bit from our last State of the Air report, and we believe that’s mainly from a general basis.  We believe that’s mainly due to improved weather patterns.  The last year of data that was used in this report was 2001.  Again, because of our desire to use quality-assured data, it takes many months to get that quality-assured data after the year ends.  As you know, 2002 was a very bad ozone year, and especially in the valley, you experienced extremely high numbers of days of very bad air pollution.  So, we believe that next year the State of the Air report is going to show a significant worsening of ozone pollution.  We’ve only done this for four years, and I think in the fifth year we’re going to be showing again that, unfortunately, our ozone pollution problem is getting worse.


In the San Joaquin Valley, every county, except potentially—let me check Mariposa to see where we are—but all of the eight counties—San Joaquin, Stanislaus, Merced, Fresno, Madera, Kings, Tulare, Kern—all received “F” grades for ozone air pollution in our State of the Air report this year, and they additionally received “F” grades in each of our prior three reports that were completed.  In total, there are over a million-and-a-half at-risk individuals, and these are probably conservative numbers.  But in terms of the data that we have, over a million-and-a-half at-risk individuals, those that are under 14 and over 65—pediatric asthma, adult asthma, chronic bronchitis, emphysema—that are living in the valley are at extreme risk to health problems because of the air pollution problem.


To just put this in a quick perspective nationally and a statewide basis, nationally there has been significant improvement in our air quality over the last twenty years.  Over the last twenty years there’s been, on average, about an 11 percent drop nationally in ozone levels.  In California, there’s been, actually, a much greater degree of drop in our ozone pollution levels from the peak one-hour ozone. . . . the peak one-hour ozone levels dropped about 47 percent over the twenty-year period.  So, we’re not saying that there has not been improvement in the air quality, because of all of the measures that are taken at the national and state and local levels to control air pollution.  However, 49 percent of the country, as we’re saying, still breathe unhealthful levels of air pollution, and growth is significantly overtaking the improvements that we’re making in air quality.


For example, over the last twenty-year period—I’ll just give you a comparison nationally to the valley, or California to the valley—our California population increased 39 percent.  The number of vehicle miles traveled increased by 91 percent.  And this is what I mean when. . . . I’m saying that our growth is overtaking our efforts to be able to clean up our air.  Now, compare that to the valley.  Whereas, the California population increased 39 percent over the last twenty years, the valley population increased 56 percent.  So, we’re having, as you know, a much higher increase.  And the vehicle miles traveled increased 136 percent.  So, you’re definitely experiencing a tremendous level of growth that is slowing our efforts to achieve cleaner air.  In fact, within the San Joaquin Valley, there has been a slower. . . . the levels of ozone pollution have dropped the last twenty years.  It has been a much slower drop:  only about 14 percent.


So, just again, there are some critics that say we’re not recognizing progress that’s been made, so I just wanted to say there has been progress, but the progress has been limited because so many people are still breathing unhealthy levels of air pollution, the pollution is still triggering asthma attacks and causing a great number of illnesses, breathing difficulties, emergency room visits, school absences, and all these things that have been discussed today.


So, those are some general comments about the report and if you have some specific questions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, you actually answered a good portion of my questions.  Let me just ask you a couple, if I could.  The American Lung Association, given that you are going to come up with other measures next year, what do you believe is the reaction, and what reaction are you looking for when these studies come out?  From the valley particularly.  Are you aiming them at residents?  Is it policymakers?  Is it people who are interested?  I mean, when people pick up the newspaper and it says, “Bakersfield, Fresno, and the Visalia-Tulare area have the worst air quality than any other city in America,” what do you believe. . . . what would you want to happen?


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  Well, we’re both trying to inform the public, and we’re trying to spur decision-makers, such as yourself, and support policymakers, such as yourself, that are trying to adopt and enact very ambitious pollution control measures to control this very significant health problem.  But, we think it’s very important that the public understand:  What is the state of the air?  Again, this is data that’s based on ozone monitoring data from across the country.  This is not data that we’re making up.  This is the data that we are receiving from the ozone monitors in communities around the state and country.  People need to know what is it they’re breathing, and that is our goal in this report.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Thank you very much.


Let’s move on to Richard Cummings, director of research, Great Valley Center.  


And as Bonnie is sitting, I will tell you, in the sequential order of these reports being released—the American Lung Association and the Great Valley Center—I think for residents in the Central Valley—and I’ll speak for Bakersfield and for Fresno—seem to be a one-two punch.  One day the Great Valley Center survey; the next, the American Lung Association’s report.  I think more than anything else, it probably had a huge impact on the everyday person starting to realize that these are very significant problems.  And I think this was all well-timed, not on any of your parts, but I think, from the perspective of a policymaker, very good timing as we start to progress with legislation from these hearings.


We can dim those lights, and we would like to thank you for coming.
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MR. RICHARD CUMMINGS:  Thank you.  I’m Richard Cummings with the Great Valley Center.  The Great Valley Center is a private nonpartisan organization based in Modesto, and our focus is the entire Great Central Valley.  


This is a satellite view of the Central Valley.  I know earlier you were talking about the topography, and when you see it from the satellite, you really get a sense of how big and expansive the entire Great Central Valley is.  On the far left of the screen, you’ll see some of the Redding area, so I’m talking about everything:   Redding all the way down to Bakersfield, which is the far right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Richard, let me interrupt you for a moment.


MR. CUMMINGS:  Sure.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you dim the lights here, Alicia, just on this panel?  We can’t see it as well.  Thank you.  Go ahead.  I’m sorry.


MR. CUMMINGS:  Now, each year the Center, in conjunction with the Public Policy Institute of California, conducts a survey of Central Valley residents.  This survey is done to provide information to policymakers and citizens about some of the big important issues facing the region.  Just in April of this year, we conducted our fourth, or fifth, survey since these surveys began, and these surveys are telephone surveys done randomly in English and in Spanish and ask over 60 questions.  And, of course, this year we asked about air quality and its effects.  Why would we ask questions about air quality?  We heard earlier. . . . I mean, it affects health.  It also affects the economy and our perceptions around the world, and it affects, as Caleb described, our quality of life.  A fourth reason we prepare these reports is so that political leaders and local governments and local citizens have access to a good sense of what the political landscape is right now for action and different attitudes.


I’m just going to share with you three or four questions we asked and some of the responses.  We asked the entire Great Central Valley:  “What is the most important issue facing the Central Valley today?”  Now, I should say this question was asked unprompted, so if you were to just pick up the phone and someone just asked you, “What is the most important issue facing the region?” they’d say, “Air pollution”; and this accounts for everyone from Redding to Bakersfield.  But if we took those numbers and pulled out just the San Joaquin Valley portion, that 16 percent jumps to 28 percent just like that.  So, clearly, there’s a difference within the valley as to the perception of the air pollution problem.


Now, when we actually prompt respondents as to. . . . of these five issues—“Which is the most important issue facing the valley today?”—air pollution ends up at 41 percent.  But in the San Joaquin Valley—that includes everything from Stockton all the way down to Bakersfield—that jumps to 56 percent.


I should note about this:  This is the first year that air pollution was. . . . this was the first year that we out-polled the Los Angeles region on this particular issue.  All these questions are also tracked with questions that the Public Policy Institute of California asks all across the state; and so, you really begin to think here that we’re always fighting Los Angeles County’s demons because we have. . . . they’ve dealt with an air quality issue, and now we’re dealing with it at the same time as well.


Now, this is the first year we asked this question, and we asked:  “How serious a health threat is air quality in your particular family?”  So, we personalized it, you know.  “Is there someone in your family who has asthma, or do you know someone who has asthma?”  What we found in the south San Joaquin Valley, again, the air quality issue is a bigger issue; and again, this also out-polled the Los Angeles region as well.


This survey is available on our website, and if you have other. . . . there are more detailed questions on the air quality issue, and I’m not going to worry you with more graphs or anything.  The idea is to provide information.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a couple of questions, of course.  In terms of the report, the report lists as the major focus (quote) “governance issues, including air quality and air quality concerns in the public ___________ government regulations and make lifestyle changes.”  In your opinion, does the survey—that government intervention—tell us that it’s necessary; that, somehow, government intervention versus voluntary measures is the way to go?  Or did we ask that question?


MR. CUMMINGS:  The questions we focused on this year’s survey were on government intervention, and what we found is that it’s definitely. . . . the trip wire for whether someone actually supported government intervention was its particular effect on the economy.  When we asked, “Would you support government regulations to deal with the air quality problem?” a certain percentage said, “Yes,” like almost 44 percent.  But then, we also followed up a question to those respondents.  Now, if those regulations affected the economy poorly, then we dropped like 15 points just like that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Questions asked such as, you know, if government regulation were to prevent the early deaths of people from heart attacks and asthmatic children from breathing freely?  I mean, do you think we might have a different response in terms of government regulations?


MR. CUMMINGS:  Polling definitely depends on the question that’s asked.  The Public Policy Institute of California is very adept at doing these polls, and we try to make them as, like, non-inflammatory as possible.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh, no, but I wonder—and just for next year—if the questions were. . . . you know, “If you knew the Central Valley had the worst air, some of the worst air in the country, and it was obviously with serious health repercussions, would you support government regulation in order to turn that around?”  Is that a loaded question?  [Laughter.]


MR. CUMMINGS:  I’ll bring it up in a meeting.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m just wondering.  I mean, hearing this testimony, I’m not sure if it really is.  I mean, what I’ve heard thus far, I’m not sure . . .


MR. CUMMINGS:  I think the closest way we actually find answers to that is we would take out the people who actually said, “I have someone in my family who’s suffering from asthma or respiratory problems,” and then you pull out the numbers to see how they feel about government regulations, and what you find is that they’re more likely to support government regulations.  So, the more likely you have someone in your family who is suffering from the effects of air pollution, the more likely. . . . this poll, for April 2003, what it says is you’re more likely to support government regulations.  


And I would add that there is also a divide between state and federal. . . . responses to state and federal intervention when it gets to. . . . respondents all across the board were more likely to support state intervention with regards to air quality.  When we asked the same question and said, “How would you feel if the federal government came in and wanted to do certain things?” support drops dramatically.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  From the federal government.


MR. CUMMINGS:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, that’s good to know.  In terms of the region that felt most strongly about air pollution, do you have a breakdown of that, in terms of what areas or what type of respondents?


MR. CUMMINGS:  The poll is done. . . . it’s done to be representative of the entire Central Valley; and throughout the entire document, we have breakouts for the Latino population.  We don’t have breakouts for the Asian population because the sample’s too small.  But what you will find is that—just depended on the question—Latinos are more likely to support efforts to involve the public transit, more concerned with some of the health ailments.  Also, if you are a respondent who has a household member under the age of 18, you’re also more likely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The report says about 50 percent of the San Joaquin Valley residents said air pollution was a big problem.  Is that higher than in previous years?


MR. CUMMINGS:  In 1998, when we first did this poll, that number was 27 percent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, it’s gone from 27 percent to over 50 percent in terms of that question.


And in terms of the questions focused on behaviors, do you take from that that Central Valley residents are willing to make some personal changes in their behaviors in order to clean the air?


MR. CUMMINGS:  They are, but again, it really varies on the person being asked.  The general answer is yes, but when. . . . for example, we asked the question:  “Would you be willing to drive a more fuel-efficient vehicle even if it weren’t your favorite vehicle to drive?” and we found between 70 and 77 percent of people would be willing to do that.  But then, when we break it out by income level, it declines.  If you’re under $40,000, you’re more likely to. . . . you agree to do something like that.  But in the report, people who earned over $80,000 were less likely to be willing to do that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just one more question.  In terms of the survey, one of the interesting things that I thought was something that we in this committee continue to talk about and that is that the valley residents’ view of the Central Valley for the future, you know, kind of where we’re going in general.  Do you get any learnings from that in terms of what they see?


MR. CUMMINGS:  Again, air quality is one part of all the issues that are addressed in the survey.  We address everything from jobs and the economy and the environment, and there are a lot of, sort of, disturbing things in the survey.  But yet, when we asked the final question—“How do you feel about living in the Central Valley?”—people are still generally optimistic and still generally think this is a good place to live.  So, it really is a challenge for people who live here today to sort of, almost, raise expectations because there are a lot of things in this survey that indicate there are a lot of things that have to be fixed in this region as well.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Will there be a follow-up to this report?


MR. CUMMINGS:  This survey is done every year, every spring, and we will be doing it again next April.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’d like to write some questions for you if you guys will let me.


MR. CUMMINGS:  My email is Richard@GreatValley.org.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thanks a lot.  I appreciate it.


MR. CUMMINGS:  Thanks a lot.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Pepper, thank you for joining us, and this will be our last panelist.  I appreciate you sticking around for us.


DR. DAVID PEPPER:  Thank you very much for having me, and thank you for the work you’re doing.  I think it’s valuable.  I think you’re also showing your gumption and showing your leadership and the willingness to take on some of the difficult issues, which I’m sure you face on a daily basis.


If I could, I do have a formal presentation but just a couple of comments about previous people who’ve talked.  The AQI of 150 down to 100—why 100?  Why not 50?  Why do we wait until we’re already over a poison threshold to start?  I would endorse a hundred, if not even lower.


The screening tool—yes, we’re working on.  I would want to mention that McLane High School did 300 of our screening tests just this past week as part of National Asthma Day, and the doctors at the academy here.  There were two resources that might want to be mentioned into the record.  


Pesticides have not been brought up.  I think it was brought up “dirty dust” off the fields.  Twenty-three thousand pounds per man, woman, and child of pesticides are applied in Fresno County alone.  That’s certainly part of the dust and part of the dirt, and I think that needs to be talked about.  


Sprawl was mentioned.  Fast foods haven’t been mentioned—drive-thrus.  We have a fast food nation.  Fresno—some of the highest incidences of obesity, diabetes.  But driving through, really, is another way to look at the air.


Funding mentioned.  The NIH, CDC would be two others.  The California Endowment might be another one we can look at.


And finally, vehicle miles traveled as one issue, clearly are one, and I’d like to start my presentation by . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you two that you missed that I’m interested in—your thoughts.  The breathe mobile car that L.A. Unified. . . . your thoughts?


DR. PEPPER:  _______ Jones, M.D., UCLA—or UCS. . . . USC—we know has studied their. . . . they’re available, they’re fairly expensive.  We’d certainly like to talk to you about the program that Kevin Hamilton and I have developed.  We tend to like to work with primary care doctors, with schools, with school nurses, rather than. . . .there was, actually, an asthma mobile here through the children’s hospital for a short period.  It was a fairly expensive venture.  I think working with the schools, working with the partners we have, would be something we could talk about, but certainly very interesting to talk about.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Something worth funding off of the fee schedule if 709 is successful.


DR. PEPPER:  The breathe mobile or the concept of a centralized resource?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You tell me.  Either/or.


DR. PEPPER:  My bias is on a family doctor.  Although I’ve been very active in asthma, I tend to like to support the families and the communities, family and community medicine.  Support the schools.  Why reinvent the wheel?  Why create something that people are dependent on when we can empower them to be dependent?  The Doctors Academy, McLane High School, we’re teaching children to teach themselves and to teach each other.  My bias would be towards funding research efforts and community efforts that work with that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the other is in terms of the in-service days.  Your thoughts in structuring that.


DR. PEPPER:  I think it’s a good idea.  I think we need to also not in-service nurses but, again, in-service communities.  Work with the Medical Society, which, as mentioned, has been a strong partner, and I’m very pleased to see. . . join in ________ efforts and others efforts.  The whole community needs to be part of it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, thank you.


DR. PEPPER:  Great.  One other, just to start:  vehicle miles traveled.  It don’t matter if it’s a bicycle.  It’s National Bike Week—local Fresno Bike Week.  I’d like to present you with this “Share the Road” from the Fresno County Bike Coalition.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  I understand there’s something going on tonight as well.


DR. PEPPER:  There is.  There’s a movie.  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’ll ride my bike from Shafter to here, but . . . [laughter]


DR. PEPPER:  Well, it’s _______________.  


I will try to be fairly brief and amplify some of the things that have been said.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.
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DR. PEPPER:  _____________ problem, as mentioned.  We’re number three in the nation for asthma, behind only Chicago and New York, 1 in 6 of our children.  We’re number two in the nation for smog; although, if you look at the one-hour exceedences we’re number one.  Three hundred million dollars a year in health care is our estimate for asthma alone.  I think the question is:  Is this is an epidemic?  This is the section.  I think the question is, clearly, yes.  


Shall I hold?


MR. ALAN WAGNER:  No.  He’s coming back.


DR. PEPPER:  And is the tip of the iceberg much bigger?  Are we talking about emphysema, cancer, heart disease?  Dr. Telles spoke to this.  Clearly, the answer is:  yes.


As mentioned, national prevalence, 5 to 7 percent; 11 percent valley-wide, including adults.  Areas are up to 30 percent in different populations, where it’s 16 percent, 1 in 6, of our school children here in the Fresno area.


MR. WAGNER:  Excuse me, Doctor.  What groups would reach 30 percent?


DR. PEPPER:  There are local communities, particularly some of the rural communities, exposed to some of the highest pesticides; areas adjacent to freeways, ___________.


MR. WAGNER:  Do you have any communities that . . .


DR. PEPPER:  Huron would be one that has a very high. . . . yes.


These are days of ozone exceedence.  Eight-hour exceedences, as mentioned, were over 120 last year, a particular bad year; although, I think we’ll find it this year equally bad.


Particulate load, as mentioned.  Unpaved roads.  Tilling of the farms.  Paved roads.  A lot of it comes down to transit.  Diesel particles, as mentioned, also contribute to particulate load.  


As mentioned, the smaller particles, our biggest concern.  PM10 includes the PM2.5, just for point of clarification, although the scientific evidence, as I read it, is that the 2.5 defined fraction, because it does penetrate deepest into the lungs, is some of the worst offenders.  We know that this particulate matter does actually get into the blood, and we’ve had tracer studies—Michigan and Toronto.  Dr. Telles has already mentioned that the cardiac events increase and particulate matter peaks and particular link to hospitalizations both here and Kaiser.  I’ll mention briefly the Kaiser study and show you some of the data we’ve been collecting from community hospitals which links particulate with respiratory problems.


We know that PMs actually get into the cells beyond getting into the blood streams, and cellular destruction does occur.  Some of these are in vitro studies, not in vivo, but the basic scientific premise is that these particulate matter are not normal parts of what we should be breathing, and they do clog everything.


This is some interesting studies.  We’ve been working with the GIS—the ISIS study here in Fresno.  This is some of our data looking at particular asthmatics and per population density.  We’ve begun piling some of the studies.  They’re fairly expensive, but I think they do hold a lot of promise in terms of things we’d like to look at.  The next three slides show some of our mapping out of asthma.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can I ask you a question about that?  Do you have any overlays with that in terms of. . . . I know the whole county’s bad in terms of air issues, but, I mean, is there any particular pockets that correlate with those in terms of bad air, one area to the next?


DR. PEPPER:  I’ll show you.  Those are a little tough to do.  We’re looking at those studies.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, I just wondered.


DR. PEPPER:  Because the area as a whole is bad, one of the studies. . . . and one of the studies that was not mentioned is the FACES study, which was funded through the California Air Resources Board (CARB).  It’s in progress.  We’re looking to help get a hundred children to carry backpacks so we can actually look at their particulate exposures on a day-to-day basis.  Some of the critiques you’ll hear is that (quote) “the science isn’t there on an individual basis.”  I liken this to the science not being there in the ’80s and ’90s about tobacco smoke.  I think it’s clear:  there are huge population-based effects.  The FACES study, I think, will present some of this information, and I think, as you’ve alluded to, more studies and funding of more studies, particularly in the valley, would be a valuable addition.


The next slide may answer some of those questions.  This is a density of the asthmatic patients that we see by color.  This is visits per square mile.  I should mention, these are little ________ community hospitals’ data.  One of the things, if I had my dreams and had the resources, would be to include Kaiser, St. Agnes, and Valley Children’s so we could essentially encompass all of the hospital visits.  These are emergency room visits.  Ideally, we’d be able to capture hospitalizations and primary care visits—unintended primary care visits.  The program that Kevin and I developed and built, the Asthma Education Program, has seen over 12,000 visits.  I’ll show you some of that data.  We’ve followed 3,000 patients now for almost five years, and we do know that we have between a 50 and 70 percent reduction in some of those asthma morbidity markers.  Luckily, we’ve not had any mortalities.  But, as mentioned, asthma is a chronic disease.


I think it should be put on the record.  Dr. Telles didn’t address specifically, but one of the questions that he posed to the Medical Society was:  Are we shortening our lives by living here?  His answer is:  Yes, by one to two years.  I would agree with those and say that those may be conservative figures.  Those kinds of studies, those population-based, long-term studies, are expensive and take tremendous vision.


That tip of the iceberg that I alluded to in terms of—Am I shortening my life by living here, my life as someone who’s a severe asthmatic?—I certainly question that, because if it is true, it certainly gives one pause for thought about whether or not we really want to stay living in this environment.


The third slide is a bit of a different perspective.  This, again, is a GIS data.  Just to show you some of the things that are possible, these are asthma spikes, asthma visits.  We would love to overlay this with direct pollution sources.  I think your question is an excellent one.  We are talking to the California Air Resources Board, the local air district, and the EPA.  They’re tough and laborious studies to do, particularly if you want to do them over time.  One of the things we’re particularly interested in is looking at the bottom right of this corner, which is where the Crippen fire was, and looking at a time series data with Blue Cross.  We already talked about that.  


And one of the things we’d like to look at is a fairly lengthy study of the three months—January, February, March—of this past year as compared to the preceding three years standardized over all respiratory visits to see if there is a difference.  The studies could either show that, yes, there’s a difference or, no, there’s not; both of which would be interesting.  Yes, there’s a difference—we have a particulate point source; no, there’s not, saying that, in fact, even a fire as big as that really doesn’t make an impact on the __________________ living in.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a question on this particular slide.  The Air Board has the sensor monitors, right? 


DR. PEPPER:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are there enough of those?  Are they in the right areas?  And does this give us a guide of where those should be or could be?  How does it work?  How does that program work?


DR. PEPPER:  Actually, Dr. Weller is here.  I might defer to her to ask.  I believe there’s four?—four or five—in the Fresno area.  It depends on if you look at a point source or an area source.  If you’re just looking at an area and saying the air, wherever you are in Fresno, is bad, it’s enough.  If you look at it and you want to look at micro areas, such as the Harlem study did, where they’re looking at a 40-square-block area, and what we’d like to do in the McLane area.  Other differences this year because the Crippen fire in the southwest was a problem, and people in the northwest stopped burning their fires, the firemen would tell me, as they came down.  The air in their area was better this year because people weren’t burning fireplaces.  We would need, obviously, a lot more monitoring stations.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just your thoughts on point source versus area source monitoring.  What does that give us from a health perspective?  What kind of a data?  Does that do anything, or we’re just really trying to clean the area up, given that . . .


DR. PEPPER:  It’s a combination.  Point source, the diesel truck right there, when I’m riding my bike and that diesel truck is right in front of me, anybody can tell you if I can smell the air, that’s clearly a problem.  The fireplace next door.  Actually, the fireplace, six-fold increase in asthmatics for children who live in a home with a fireplace.  Low-hanging _________.  Get rid of all fireplaces.  Get rid of all fireplaces, all wood burning.  Ag burning.  Again, why do we. . . . your bills, I think, speak to that eloquently, looking towards a ten-year phase-out or seven-year phase-out.  Great.  It ought to be as fast as we can get it.  But area source, it’s well known fireplaces are severe contribution, both to the people living in that home and the proximity of people who live ten feet away.  If you walk out of your house and you smell the air, you smell the fireplace next door, you know that’s getting into the lungs.  So, point source clearly an issue.  


Ozone is a larger issue, although there’s quite a bit of work being done on the micro particles being admitted from tailpipes.  I think it’s been alluded to:  vehicle miles traveled.  The number of particulates that are produced by vehicle miles are probably the single biggest one.  Support for public transit.  Bicycles.  Zero-emission vehicles.  Many other benefits.  One of my personal favorites.  


So, I think point source and area source both are problematic.  Crippen fire raised some issues as far as are there more point services in essentially under-served areas or financially under-served areas, a bit of social justice issues?  There may be more.  Fireplaces in richer areas, so they may be contributing.  But both, I think, are concerns, if that answers your question.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It does.  How about barbecues?


DR. PEPPER:  Barbecues, particularly the chemicals that are used to light them, are particularly bad, as I understand.  Using metal cones would certainly be a benefit.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I mean, I just ask that seriously because . . .


DR. PEPPER:  You know, charcoal—again, I would turn to some of the air pollution toxicologists to. . . . you know, the amount of particulate that comes out of a charcoal fire versus a wood-burning fire.  My understanding is charcoal is better than wood-burning and using no chemicals to light that is better.  Clearly, gas is the best, with the least amount of byproducts.  When you burn anything, the hotter you burn it, the cleaner the carbon products are, the more purer combustion you get; although, the NOx can go up.  And the purer the source, the more pure carbon and pure hydrogen you have.  So, liquefied natural gas is just a carbon hydrogen molecule compound.  That’s burned, it basically goes to carbon and hydrogen byproducts.  Anything that’s got sulfur.  


There was talk of diesel.  We have clean diesel.  Europe uses it.  It’s more expensive.  Why isn’t California using 15 parts per million diesel?  It’s a financial issue.  Financial challenges.  But anything that burns is going to be problematic:  certain burning, open field burning, fireplace burning.  Inefficient combustion burning is going to be the worst.  Charcoal is probably better than that.  Does  that . . . ?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That answered it.  Thank you.


DR. PEPPER:  Dr. Weller is in the audience and I defer to her.  


San Joaquin _______________ think. . . . people don’t always think of the cost, but if we have 3 million people in the Greater Valley and 300,000, or 10 percent conservatively, are asthmatic—this is only the cost of asthmatics.  These are accrued, but chief estimates:  a thousand dollars per person per year, whether or not they’re complaint or noncompliant.  Compliant patients:  25 percent of the patients have a thousand dollar—again, a conservative cost; I think Dr. Baz spoke to that; 60 to 70 dollars per inhaler per month—just for medications.  You’re also adding doctor visits.  For the less compliant patient, 15 percent of them, or .15, will make three visits a year to their primary care physician.  We know this is about an average.  Two hundred dollars is probably conservative.  Fifteen percent will visit the emergency room for about a thousand dollars.  Again, conservative.

Kevin Hamilton spoke to the unreimbursed costs, or the MediCal crisis, which I’m sure you’re also aware of, or the underinsured, which he and I deal with on a daily basis, and about 5 percent will have a hospitalization, which is about $10,000.  So, if you average that out, there’s probably 50 percent of asthmatics who never see their doctor and aren’t even diagnosed.  


But these are just acute costs.  What are the costs in missed school?  What are the costs of longevity?  People dying early.  What are the costs of people being considered disabled?  I had a woman in the asthma clinic yesterday, 38 years old.  Hasn’t been able to work for a year-and-a-half because she goes in, she needs to carry inhalers, she’s constantly _______________.  These don’t include those costs.  So, $300 million a year in the valley for asthma alone.  Again, emphysema, bronchitis, lung cancer, heart disease, plus missed days of school and work.


I’m a graphic person.  I like to see pictures.  Here’s some telling pictures.  The red is over a hundred days a year.  The left is ozone.  The right is PM10.  [recording tape turned] . . . pointing to PM10, and I’ll show you that in a second.  But you can see that there are only two areas that are red for both of these.  The South Coast, which is making improvements, and the Greater Valley.


It might be noted that you can pick. . . . somebody has asked me, “Where should I live?”  If air was your only consideration, and clearly, there’s some answers out of this slide.


These are some very telling slides from the Environmental Protection Agency and I think speak to the fact that we have challenges which are unique to our area, both to California but particularly to the valley.  Those have implications as far as financial balance.  If I’m a trucker in Nebraska or Montana or Idaho, why should I be forced to take 15 parts per million diesel for ten cents greater a gallon?  It’s California’s problem and the East Coast.


So, this is ozone frequency of exceeding eight-hour national standards.  You can see that apart from the, sort of, broad level across the East Coast, the Central Valley, which is the larger peak, and California to the north and the South Coast, which is a lesser peak to the left, stand out.


Next two slides are similar.  This is particulate matter PM2.5, severity of annual national exceedences.  This is in terms of mean concentration.  There was a presenter earlier who spoke to 11 parts per million.  Or sorry, 11 microgram increases or one-and-a-half-fold increase.  You can see that the 30 to 40 range is where the. . . . again, the largest peak in the central part of California.  It’s the Fresno area, Bakersfield, and in the South Coast.


The last slide, perhaps the most telling.  This is particulate 2.5, severity of 24-hour exceedences.  This is your concentrations in micrograms.  You’re looking at a hundred here, and you can see that, in fact, it’s Fresno by far that exceeds it.  So, if I’m a trucker anywhere else, or if I’m a pollution source outside of the Central Valley or the South Coast, why should I care?  


I think some of this speaks to the legislation that I know the OCA has proposed.  I’m certainly not a legislative expert, but the concept of an inner empowerment zone, what exactly would that mean?  How do we face the air quality issues here and the particulate matter quality issues here when we’ve got large trucking fleets that move through the valley, buy their gas outside of California, and pollute here?  Where’s the air tax?  Where do we do that?  How do we do that?


As just an overlap again, you can see Fresno County is over 16 percent.  This is a _________ data out of UCLA.  The Central Valley, as a whole, is quite impacted.


Interesting experiment in Atlanta, 1996, during the Olympics.  They shut down traffic congestion and reinforced public transportation for two weeks.  Congestion was down 22 percent.  Acute asthma visits went down 42 percent.  This was Medicaid data; not necessarily children who were going to the Olympics.  Again, just speaking the need for public transportation, the need for alternatives to the car, to urban sprawl, and to diesel particularly.


This is our data:  12,000 patient visits over a course of 3½ years.  This is community hospitals.  And this speaks to. . . . the red line, and it is a busy slide, but the red line is probably the most important.  That’s visits.  This is patients who go to visit.  As Dr. Telles mentioned, this is respiratory.  I think the link between cardiac and respiratory is best drawn by CPR (cardio-pulmonary resuscitation).  It’s very difficult to separate the lungs from the heart.  Oftentimes when we do lung transplants, we have to do heart-lung transplants because they’re so intricately tied.  And so, if you get lung damage, you’ve got heart damage.


This is respiratory data.  We would love to look at this with cardiac data.  The asthma program just took a 35 percent pay. . . . not a pay cut, but our budget was cut 35 percent.  This was data that we funded.  We would love to do more of this and love to have it supported with integrating this with the GIS data, with the EPA, studies we’re looking for funding.  But the red line, you’ll notice, peaks January/December, almost every year, right about the same time the yellow line, which is particulate matter, peaks, and the blue line, which is carbon. . . . CO products, peaks.  It has very little relation to the pink line.  Some are peaks of ozone, so a lot of press has been on peak ozone.  A lot of our data and a lot of the Kaiser data for Central California and, indeed, the medical literature that’s coming out now says that, in fact, it’s particulate.


A couple more slides on solutions.  Reducing what we make.  I think you’ve addressed some of these things.  But less burning.  Just in general, fireplaces and ag.  Mass transit.  Get people out of cars.  Give them alternatives.  Make cars more inconvenient.  People don’t like that particularly in California, particularly in South Coast and Fresno—Central Valley.  We’re awfully dependent on our cars.  We’ve had a car culture.  I think we’re paying for that.  And the transit options are expensive.  They’re investments in infrastructure, but I think the payoffs that we’re going to have to look at, in terms of, as Kevin Hamilton said, the five- and ten-year plan, will certainly pay off.  Light rail, busses, carpools, cars, and SUVs.  It’s newer cars, and it’s really mile-per-gallon times vehicle miles traveled.  MPG times VMT times particulate and pollution per gallon of gas in different cars obviously make differences.  Just drive less.  Alternative fuels.  


We just had the “Rally Thru the Valley” just this last week—Wednesday—____________ against population and speaking to city planning, both in Fresno County and Fresno city, which is adopting it.  But valley-wide, I think there’s a need to really address it on a region basis because I keep hearing from city planners:  “If we do it here, everybody will just move to Madera, where they offer a third of an acre.”  It needs to be a level playing field, and that’s something that I don’t believe can be done on a local basis.  It needs to come from a state mandate.


Avoiding our exposure.  I think Elaine Beyer spoke eloquently to this and some of the things that the schools are starting to do.  My boys are both in sports.  It’s tough to rearrange their day, and, ideally, we shouldn’t have to.  Same thing with why do we wait to AQI of 100 or 150?  We need to be preventive.  It’s the most effective form of medicine, it’s the most effective form of dealing with the problem.  Filtering the air—__________________ screens.


Some extreme solutions.  Where are indirect source fees on gas?  So, when I buy a gallon of gas, do I have to buy one gallon of gas, 8 pounds, 64 pounds, of pollutants into the air?  Where’s the tax on that?  Not that I’m a tax everything, but if you’re going to tax anything, tax the air that I breathe because I’m paying the price and my family’s paying the price.


Blended biodiesel, no diesel, gasohol, alternative technologies.  There are some interesting things there in terms of soil-based formulas.  Not all pure answers.  Alternative technology.  Organic farming.  I did mention the 23,000 pounds per man, woman, and child of pesticides applied in Fresno County, which is down from 36,000 pounds last year but a lot of way to go.  


Severe smokers.  I’ve made the joke that when you get those cars that go smoking by, where are smoke police?  Something like 50 percent of the extreme polluters are 5 to 10 percent of the cars.  So, you know, “Excuse me, sir.  Step out of the car.”  Poof!  Off goes the car into the junkyard.  Severe, but I think we, you know, in an epidemic situation like this requires really strong leadership and tough decisions.  


Moving, obviously, is not one anyone wants to contemplate.  


Again, why do we want clean air?  I think we have to take into mind children are often used but it’s really not just our children; it’s all of us who are impacted.


And I thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you.  


Just a couple of questions.  In terms of the committee looking at the Kaiser study that we were talking about earlier, PM10 and hospital visits, your thoughts on that particular study?


DR. PEPPER:  My understanding is the study was presented to CARB.  Again, I could ask you to direct your questions more directly to them.  I was not able to make that presentation in Sacramento, but my understanding is they did link particulate matter much more directly to hospitalizations, particularly in the Central Valley.  Kevin Hamilton spoke to some of that.  I think there is a need to take that and all the studies that are being done, as well as studies that should be done in the future, and asking questions of what is happening here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The second question I would have would be in terms of the screening tool we talked about, in terms of symptoms versus actual folks with asthma, your thoughts on that?


DR. PEPPER:  There is no gold standard for making a diagnosis of asthma.  The best diagnosis we have is based on a reversibility once drugs are given.  So, we have somebody breathe out, find the force and the volume with which they can breathe out, the speed with which they can get air in and out.  We then give them a beta agonist or a dilating medication that opens the lungs and opens the heart, and we see if there’s a 12 percent reversibility.  Those were some of the tests, at least initial tests, we did with McLane.  Those are things that could be done, community-wide could be done, either in a Breath Mobile or through family doctor education or through medical societies.  


The percent of undiagnosed asthmatics is always a question:  What percent of people out there who cough more than one or two nights a month, once or twice a week, are forced to not exercise?  If it’s like diabetes, we’ve got 50 percent of the people.  So, whether we’re at 10, 11, 15 percent or 20, 25, 30 percent is a question but certainly something that bears . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


DR. PEPPER:  You’re welcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We have time for public comment, and we do have Christine Foster.  Is she still here?


Thank you for joining us.


MS. CHRISTINE FOSTER:  Thank you for having me here.


I’m with the Tulare County Asthma Coalition, and we’re fairly, newly formed.  I am based in the city of Tulare; live in the city of Visalia.  They’re in the number, what, four spot, in air pollution.  So, we think we’re right in the middle of it.


I don’t want to take too much time, but what we’re trying to do is fill some gaps with community action, and that’s really difficult because people work, and they can only volunteer so much time.  So, support for those kinds of community efforts might be good.  We did just, in conjunction with the Respiratory Care Department, write and will submit a proposal for what we’re calling an “Asthma Learning Adventure Lab.”  So, hopefully, that will be able to go to communities, to the schools, get a little bit more help to the actual person that’s suffering from the asthma to learn how to control their own asthma and their own environment.  It’s like keeping. . . . your cup is pretty full with the air pollution.  When you start adding on things that are happening in the house, as far as cockroaches and all those different things, and it starts to overfill your cup and we’re, like, crazy, trying to do these little things to keep the cup from overflowing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.


MS. FOSTER:  We do go to the schools and we do teach nurses and the health aides on an annual basis.  It’s all voluntary on our part and voluntary on their part.  We have taught coaches, and coaches have a lot of questions.  I don’t think they’re totally equipped to handle an emergency situation.  Community health fairs, schools for their health fairs, that sort of thing.


We did for the World Asthma Month send out a letter to pharmacies, asking that the pharmacy actually label the inhaler itself and not the box, and that should, we think, help to reduce the amount of using the wrong medication at the wrong time because you’ve got the directions right on the device.  Also, if kids are taking them to school in their pockets, they’re not labeled.  They go out for sports.  They throw their inhaler down on the grass, and they all just “Whose is whose?”  “We don’t know.”  So, that might help with that.


Definitely in favor of decreasing urban sprawl.  I know that every single city says, “We have a plan to reduce urban sprawl,” and I’m going to pick on Visalia because Visalia’s where I live.  They just are building out at Churk(?).  They’re building past Packwood Creek, which they promised to Tulare that they would never do.  They say they’re doing it, but there is nothing that really forces the cities to comply with what they’ve set up and nothing that overviews their plans, their ten-year, twenty-year plans, to make sure that they’re not building the big roads way out, because when they develop those roads way out to the outskirts of town, that’s where the housing’s going to be developed.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  So, you’re saying they’re not incorporating that into their general plan?


MS. FOSTER:  Well, I think they probably put in some things.  They’ll say they’re going to redevelop their city centers but also the other things that are already existing in plans.  And I won’t say this is at Visalia because I’ll probably get yelled at for that, but some cities are building larger roads that go to the outskirts of town, and that’s in their general plan.  That counteracts the good.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When you say “yelled at,” who would yell at you?


MS. FOSTER:  Probably the city officials, the leadership people.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are they doing enough to clean the air?


MS. FOSTER:  The cities?  The leadership?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MS. FOSTER:  I would like to see more effort on the parts of all cities.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, maybe you should yell at them.


MS. FOSTER:  Yes.  I should be at their meetings telling them a few things.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you vote?


MS. FOSTER:  I vote.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re their boss then, right?


MS. FOSTER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  They work for you.


MS. FOSTER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just wanted to make sure.  You said they would yell at you.  Normally, people don’t yell at their bosses.  I just kind of wondered why they would yell at you.


MS. FOSTER:  Well, I think that sometimes what ends up in the newspaper, or whatever, it ends up being uncomplimentary to you; like you’re putting down efforts of well-meaning people.  And they are well-meaning people, and they’re also looking at the economic impacts and a lot other things.  Some of us that are just focused on one area don’t.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  I guess the question is:  Are we balanced?


MS. FOSTER:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand industry. . . . it’s really important that we balance that, but the question becomes:  Are we balanced?  Even from the get-go.


MS. FOSTER:  And I’m just kind of reading things about, like, Visalia, I’ve read in the paper, is probably going to get a biofuel plant put in; that there’s . . .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, you’re supportive of all those efforts.


MS. FOSTER:  Well, if they have enough regulations on the biofuel, that they don’t put out a lot of VOCs, which is the volatile organic chemicals, because a lot of the Midwest plants, I understand, have high levels of pollutions that are going out.  So, that would have to be addressed.  But I definitely would be in favor.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.


Any other public comment?  Yes, Bonnie.


MS. HOLMES-GEN:  I feel that _________ needed to say that in addition to all the excellent suggestions that have been made, and, of course, to your legislative package, that we definitely need to work very hard to stop the weakening of the federal Clean Air Act.  And that is another key purpose of the Lung Association’s State of the Air report, both to stop the implementation of the weakened new source review regulations in California, prevent further weakening, and prevent the Blue Skies Initiative that’s being promoted by the Administration in Washington as a (quote/unquote) “improvement” to the Clean Air Act, which would actually set back our ability to achieve clean air standards by at least ten years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And if the EPA could just say the same thing in the same two weeks, that would be helpful also, because they keep changing their positions every other week, it seems.


Dr. Pepper?


DR. PEPPER:  Just one other comment.  When you speak about buying a home here, when I bought a home, I was informed about radon gas in my basement.  I was informed about the noise from the airplanes.  I was informed about how close to the railway.  Where is—and this wouldn’t be very political or easy to swallow—but where is the statement that says if you buy a house in the Central Valley, you’re going to die two years earlier?  And you’re exposing your children to asthma as one of the highest.  Is that something that. . . . and I’m not clear how those rules get written.  But when people start hearing that kind of thing, then. . . . and not that that’s. . . . I don’t want my property values to go down, but is that something worth considering?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  I think that’s a very good suggestion.  Thank you.


Any other comments?


MS. BROWN:  I came from two ranching families, and I think what happens is a lot of the smaller ranchers, I feel, are being bought out by developers, and I think it’s very important that somehow we support the smaller ranchers, not only to continue ranching but to use alternative methods.  It used to be this valley, or this Fresno area, was just wonderful in terms of being able to drive through an area and smell the vines and smell the peach trees.  We can’t do that no more, and it’s really a sad thing.  So, I think you do need to, in looking at the whole overall picture, to try and support the smaller ranchers to stay in business.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got it.  Thank you.


Any other comments?  Then we’re going to close.


MS. FOSTER:  I’ll make this really fast.  I had it on a separate page, and I’m really sorry.  Christine Foster again.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No problem.


MS. FOSTER:  Tulare District Hospital is a hundred-bed hospital, very small.  I have my office there, so I asked them for some statistics.  We had 908 asthmatics visiting Tulare District’s Emergency Room, including 427 children, and 296 were admitted to the hospital, including 76 children.  And the total charges for the ER and hospitalizations was $3.6 million.  That’s a lot for a little hospital.  And they were reimbursed a small proportion of that.  And also, a person that goes into the emergency room, the average time was 82 minutes, and hospitalization was 4.2 days.


I took the statistics on a monthly basis, gave it to Kevin Hamilton, and he said that it seemed to trend with what they had.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.


Any other comment?


We will close this Select Committee on Air Quality in the Central Valley.  I want to thank everyone, and we will reconvene in about a week on another topic.


Thank you.
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